
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

July 23, 2024
Mark W. McBrayer, Mayor
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2
David Glasheen, Councilman, District 3
Brayden Rose, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Tim Collins, Councilman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Matt Wade, City Attorney

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.

 

12:00 p.m. - The City Council convenes in City Council Chambers and immediately recesses into
Executive Session.
           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

1. 1. 1. Vital Statistics   

 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.072, to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

1. 2. 1. 19th Street and Avenue X   

 

1. 2. 2. Commercial Lease Amendment for property located at 5034 Frankford Avenue,
Lubbock, Texas, 79424

  

 

1. 3. Hold an executive sesssion in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087,   

http://www.mylubbock.us


1. 3. Hold an executive sesssion in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087,
to discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body
seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and
with which the governmental body is conducting economic development negotiations; and
to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect described
herein above.

  

 

1. 3. 1. Lubbock Economic Development Alliance update regarding ongoing LEDA
economic development projects and negotiations with business prospects including
any related financial incentives offered or discussed.

  

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

1:00 p.m. or immediately following Executive Session - The City Council reconvenes in City Council
Chambers in Work Session regarding items for presentation and discussion on such issues that may
require in-depth consideration by the City Council.
 

2. Work Session - Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide
guidance to staff as appropriate.

  

 

2. 1. Recognition of Mandela Washington Fellows   

 

2. 2. Discuss Sewer Lateral Committee Recommendations and Policies   

 

2:00 p.m. - The City Council continues in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

3. Ceremonial Items   

 

3. 1. Invocation   

 

3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on July 23, 2024. Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 

  



 

5. Minutes   

 

5. 1. June 25, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
June 25, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Swearing-In Ceremony

 

6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

6. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2024-O0100, Amendment 40, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Civil Service Positions; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

 

6. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2024-O0101, Amendment 41, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Airport Capital Project Fund and Airport Operating Fund;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2024-O0102, Amendment 42, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Operating Budget for Market Lubbock Inc.-Visit Lubbock and
Sports Authority; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 43, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Cable Services Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 5. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Right-of-Way Deed and one (1) Drainage
Easement Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located
in Section 8, Block JS, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 4), on the west side of North
Milwaukee Avenue and on the north side of Erskine Street, to be utilized for the 2022
Roadway Bond Project.

 

6. 6. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way
Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in
Section 39, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 31), at the southwest corner of 34th
Street and Upland Avenue, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

 

6. 7. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for



6. 7. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed,
and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 42,
Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, at the southwest corner of 34th Street and Upland
Avenue, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

 

6. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed,
and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 1,
Block D-6, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 6), on the west side of Upland Avenue across
from 12th Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

 

6. 9. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way
Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in
Section 1, Block D-6, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 7), on the west side of Upland
Avenue, north of 12th Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

 

6. 10. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way
Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in
Section 1, Block D-6, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 8), at the southwest corner of
Upland Avenue and 9th Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

 

6. 11. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way
Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in
Section 1, Block D-6, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 13), on the west side of Upland
Avenue, south of 4th Street, north of 8th Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond
Project.

 

6. 12. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way
Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in
Section 1, Block D-6, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 16), at the southeast corner of
Upland Avenue and 4th Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

 

6. 13. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way
Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in
Section 1, Block D-6, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 21), at the northeast corner of
Upland Avenue and 19th Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

 

6. 14. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for



6. 14. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1)Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed,
and (1) Water Line Easement Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain
real property located in Section 38, Block AK, of the GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock
County, Texas (Parcel 12), on the east side of Upland Avenue, at the railroad crossing, to
be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

 

6. 15. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept a Real
Estate Sales Contract, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and
Lubbock Land Holdings, LLC, for the purchase of real property located in Lot 21, 82nd
Acres Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, on the east side of I-27, south of
82nd Street, to be used for drainage improvements on the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

 

6. 16. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Change Order No. 2 to Contract 16162, with Landmark Structures, LP, related to the
construction completion of the 2.0 Million Gallon Elevated Storage Tanks at 3rd Street and
University Avenue and 87th Street and Avenue P.

 

6. 17. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public
Works Contract 18144, with West Texas Paving, Inc., for Unpaved Roads Improvements
C.O. Phase 4.

 

6. 18. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Mutual Termination of Lease
Agreement, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and
Dolgencorp of Texas, Inc., regarding property at 2015 50th Street-Unit B.

 

6. 19. Resolution - Civic Centers: Consider a resolution approving the recommendation from
the Cultural Arts Grant Review Sub-Committee and the Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of
Directors, for the 2024 Cultural Arts Grant Program, using Hotel Occupancy Tax funds
collected at the end of Fiscal Year 2022-23.

 

6. 20. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18160, with Vexus Fiber Internet Services, for upgrades of internet
services for various City departments.

 

6. 21. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18193, with Unite Private Networks, to provide Secondary Business
Internet Service connections for Citizens Tower and multiple City locations.

 

7. Regular Agenda   

 

7. 1. Public Hearing - Planning (District 3): Consider a request for Zone Case 763-D, a



7. 1. Public Hearing - Planning (District 3): Consider a request for Zone Case 763-D, a
request of Woda Cooper Companies, Inc. for Buslon, Inc., for a zone change from Low
Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to
Medium Density Residential District (MDR), at 5311 Bangor Avenue, located north of
54th Street and east of Bangor Avenue, on approximately 5.9 acres of unplatted land out of
Block E-2, Section 28, and consider an ordinance.

 

7. 2. Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Consider a request for Zone Case 2538-MM, a
request of K-9 Kennels, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2)
to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 1607 and 1715 Alcove Avenue, located north of
19th Street and east of Alcove Avenue, on approximately 6.1 acres of unplatted land out of
Block D-6, Section 1, and consider an ordinance.

 

7. 3. Public Hearing - Planning: Hold a public hearing in accordance with Section 43.0694(a)
of the Texas Local Government Code, regarding the City of Lubbock's intent to annex an
area of land consisting of approximately 374.74 acres of real property commonly known as
the Highland Oaks Subdivision, located within an area located south of 146th Street (F.M.
7500), east of Frankford Avenue, north of Woodrow Road (F.M. 7600), and west of Slide
Road (F.M. Road 1730) into Lubbock's corporate limits.

 

7. 4. Resolution and Order - City Secretary: Consider a resolution and order for a special city
election to be held on November 5, 2024, in accordance with Texas Local Government
Code Section 43.0696, regarding the annexation of approximately 374.74 acres of real
property commonly known as the Highland Oaks Subdivision, located within an area
located south of 146th Street (F.M. 7500), east of Frankford Avenue, north of Woodrow
Road (F.M. 7600), and west of Slide Road (F.M. Road 1730).

 



 AI# 12679 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
June 25, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
June 25, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Swearing-In Ceremony

Item Summary
June 25, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
June 25, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Swearing-In Ceremony

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Attachments
6.25.2024 
6.25.2024 S Swearing-In Ceremony 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

June 25, 2024
2:00 P. M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 25th of June, 2024, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 2:00 p.m.

2:01 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Tray Payne; Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris; Council Member Tim Collins;
Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; 2.1; 3.1-3.3; Citizen Comments 4; 5.1; 6.9; 6.1-6.8; 6.10-6.15; and 7.1-7.9.
Item No. 6.9 was postponed to the September 24, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting.

1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 2:02 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 2:32 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 3:14 p.m.

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072,
to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

1. 1. 1. Commercial Lease Amendment for property located at 5034 Frankford Avenue,
Lubbock, Texas 79424

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Building Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority Board of Directors,
Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors, and the Permit & License
Appeal Board.

2:32 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items



2:32 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items
for presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
 
2. Work Session - Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide

guidance to staff as appropriate.
 
2. 1. Discuss financing options including bonded indebtedness for public works projects (streets)

and quality of life projects.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council.
Topics discussed included: 2022 street bond citizens advisory committee history and
overview; 2022 street bond resolution; November 2022 street bond projects; timeline for bond
election; and 2022 recommended projects from the citizens advisory committee - not funded.
There was a consensus among City Council to move forward with creating a citizen advisory
committee to explore a street bond election for November 2024. 

 
3:02 p.m. - City Council continues in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 
3. Ceremonial Items
 
3. 1. Recognition of Outgoing Council Member, Steve Massengale

 
Mayor Tray Payne gave remarks recognizing Steve Massengale, former Council Member, and
presented him with a name plaque, a picture frame, a City of Lubbock "Steve Massengale"
street sign, and a set of challenge coins. Mr. Massengale gave final remarks.

 
3. 2. Invocation

 
Pastor Todd Sons, St. Matthew United Methodist Church, led the invocation. 

 
3. 3. Pledges of Allegiance

 
Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem
Shelia Patterson Harris.

 
Call to Order
 
The meeting was called to order at 3:14 p.m.
 
4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at
the meeting, no later than 3:00 p.m. on June 25, 2024. Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
 
Sign ups:

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 25, 2024 Page 2 of 9



Alex Scarborough appeared before City Council to speak in opposition of item 7.8 (a
resolution prescribing the type of notice to be given for a joint meeting of the City
Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission, for a public hearing to consider
amendments to the Unified Development Code). 

5. Minutes

5. 1. May 28, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
June 3, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Swearing-In LPD Chief

Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.
Jennifer Wilson, to approve the May 28, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes
and the June 3, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Swearing-In LPD Chief minutes. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Council Member Christy
Martinez-Garcia, to approve items 6.1-6.8 and 6.10-6.15. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

6. 1.

6. 2.

6. 3.

6. 4.

Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0089, 
Amendment 34, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the 
Grant Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0090, 
Amendment 35, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the 
Abandoned Vehicle Fund, Criminal Investigations Fund, and Department of Justice Asset 
Sharing Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0091, 
Amendment 36, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the 
Parks & Recreation Fees; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0092, 
Amendment 37, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the 
Traffic Capital Improvement Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings 
clause. 

6. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0093,

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 25, 2024 Page 3 of 9



6. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0093,
Amendment 38, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Parks & Recreation Capital Project Fund and American Rescue Plan Act Funding; providing
for filing; and providing for a savings clause.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, introduced the item, gave comments, and answered questions
from City Council. Colby VanGundy, director of parks and recreation, gave comments and
answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0094,

Amendment 39, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
6. 7. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0292 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City, a Water Line Easement Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Tract “A” of Country Gardens Addition to the
City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, on the south side of the Marsha Sharp Freeway,
between Wausau Avenue and Upland Avenue. 

  

 
6. 8. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0293 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Public Works Contract 18063, with Rink’s Lease Service, Inc., for Water Line Change Out
Ahead of Paving, in the Manhattan Heights area. 
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 9. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Professional

Services Contract 17872, with SAFEbuilt, LLC, for the completion of a Zoning Map Analysis.
 
This item was postponed.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Matt Wade, city attorney, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Brayden

Rose, to postpone this item to the September 24, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting.  
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 10. Resolution - Public Works Water: Resolution No. 2024-R0294 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 17887, with South Plains Communications, to provide radio tower repair
services for critical data communications, for Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition
systems. 

  

 
6. 11. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No.'s 2024-R0295 and 2024-R0296

authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 17944, with LarMar Industries, and
Contract 18111, with Rig Safe Solutions-Rental Sales and Services, for annual generator
service and maintenance at various City facilities. 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 25, 2024 Page 4 of 9



 
6. 12. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0297 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 17998, with Johnson General Contractors Group, LLC, for maintenance and
repair services, for Public Improvement District fencing and wooden structures.  

  

 
6. 13. Resolution - Telecommunications: Resolution No. 2024-R0298 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001859, with World Wide Technology, LLC, for replacement
telephone system equipment, including hardware and software, as well as 3 years of
maintenance and support. 

  

 
6. 14. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2024-R0299 authorizing the Mayor to execute the Texas

Anti-Gang Center-Lubbock Agreement, an interlocal agreement by and between the City of
Lubbock, on behalf of the Lubbock Police Department and the Lubbock City Attorney’s
Office, Lubbock County, Texas, on behalf of the Lubbock County Sheriff and the Lubbock
County Criminal District Attorney, the State of Texas, on behalf of the Texas Department of
Public Safety, Region 1, and the United States of America, on behalf of the U.S. Marshals
Service Lone Star Fugitive Task Force Lubbock, Drug Enforcement Administration, Dallas
Division, and the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms, for the purpose of
combating criminal organizations operating in and affecting this region. 

  

 
6. 15. Resolution - Lubbock Fire Rescue: Resolution No. 2024-R0300 authorizing the City

Council to reject any and all bids received for pest control services at Lubbock Fire Rescue
facilities. 

  

 
7. Regular Agenda
 
7. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Appointments

Advisory Board, Building Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority
Board of Directors, Citizens Traffic Commission, Lubbock Water Advisory Commission,
Model Codes & Construction Advisory Board, Permit & License Appeal Board, and the
StarCare Board of Trustees.
 
Appointments Advisory Board - Reappointment of Brett Underwood and Ryan Henry; and
the appointment of Colton Davis to replace David Glasheen; Amy Sikes to replace Kristi
Laverty; and Cathy Allen to replace Margaret Randle.
 
Building Board of Appeals - Reappointment of Russell Thoma, Jr. and Jeremy Steen; and the
appointment of Sandra Bagwell to replace Alexander Salter; and Ricardo Martinez to replace
Alex Cardenas.
 
Canadian River Municipal Water Authority Board of Directors - Reappointment of Jay
House.
 
Citizens Traffic Commission - Reappointment of Phyllis Gant-Gambles and Patricia
Francis-Johnson; and the appointment of Glenn Patton to replace Jason Madrid.
 
Lubbock Water Advisory Commission - Appointment of Dr. Shane Walker to replace
Donna McCallister; Kelly Davila to replace Dr. Melanie Barnes; and Ray Lozada to replace

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 25, 2024 Page 5 of 9



Steve Verett.
 
Model Codes & Construction Advisory Board - Appointment of George Henson to replace
Glenn Davis; and Gordon Wilkerson to replace Steven Scruggs.
 
Permit & License Appeal Board - Reappointment of Cecile Garcia and Brooks Jones; and
the appointment of David Saunders to replace Tarek Redwan. 
 
StarCare Board of Trustees - Reappointment of Robert Kazee and Brian Shannon; and the
appointment of Ray Mendoza to replace William Carter. 

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to appoint and reappoint the aforementioned citizens to the Appointments
Advisory Board, Building Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority
Board of Directors, Citizens Traffic Commission, Lubbock Water Advisory
Commission, Model Codes & Construction Advisory Board, Permit & License Appeal
Board, and the StarCare Board of Trustees. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 2. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Lubbock Reese

Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors. 
  

 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to appoint Brian Kimberly to the Lubbock Reese Redevelopment
Authority Board of Directors. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 3. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0095, for Zone Case 3310-B,

a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for SPGO, LLC, for a zone change from Office District
(OF) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), generally located north of 142nd Street and
west of Quaker Avenue, on 1.00 acre of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.
 
Mayor Payne opened the public hearing at 3:38 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor Payne closed the public hearing at 3:39 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0095. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 25, 2024 Page 6 of 9



7. 4. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0096, for Zone Case 3310-C,
a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Quaker/146 Investment Holdings, LP, for a zone
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial District
(NC), generally located north of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 9.23 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.
 
Mayor Payne opened the public hearing at 3:38 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor Payne closed the public hearing at 3:39 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0096. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 5. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0097, for Zone Case 3310-D,

a request of AMD Engineering, LLC, for Quaker/146 Investment Holdings, LP, for a zone
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial District
(NC), generally located north of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 8.67 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.
 
Mayor Payne opened the public hearing at 3:38 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor Payne closed the public hearing at 3:39 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0097. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 6. Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0098, for Zone Case 3303-C,

a request of Seventeen Services, LLC, for SE4NS Properties, LLC, for a zone change from
Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 12001 Frankford
Avenue, located east of Frankford Avenue and south of 119th Street, Stonewood Industrial
Park Addition, Tract C.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.
 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 25, 2024 Page 7 of 9



 
Mayor Payne opened the public hearing at 3:38 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor Payne closed the public hearing at 3:39 p.m.

 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0098. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 7. Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2024-O0099, for Zone Case 1947-H,

a request of Clovis Sign Service for Southwest Convenience Stores, for a zone change from
Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at
5802 34th Street, located west of Frankford Avenue and north of 34th Street, Summer Place
Addition, Lot 10.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.
 
Mayor Payne opened the public hearing at 3:38 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor Payne closed the public hearing at 3:39 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0099. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 8. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2024-R0301 prescribing the type of notice to be given

for a joint meeting of the City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission, for a public
hearing to consider amendments to the Unified Development Code (UDC), as provided under
Section 211.007(d) of the Texas Local Government Code, and setting the date for the public
hearing.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Alex Scarborough; and Matt Wade, city attorney, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0301. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 9. Resolution - City Secretary: Resolution No. 2024-R0302 canvassing the returns and   

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 25, 2024 Page 8 of 9



7. 9. Resolution - City Secretary: Resolution No. 2024-R0302 canvassing the returns and
declaring the results of the City of Lubbock Special Runoff Election held on June 15, 2024.
 
Courtney Paz, city secretary, read the results received from the June 15, 2024 Special Runoff
Election. Candidates for Mayor and votes received: Steve Massengale, 4,587 votes; and Mark
McBrayer, 11,891 votes. Candidates for Council District 2 and votes received: Gordon Harris,
872 votes; and Anah Menjares, 638 votes. The total votes cast in the election were 16,478
votes. 
 
Person receiving majority votes, and therefore duly elected: for Mayor, Mark McBrayer; and
for Council District 2, Gordon Harris.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0303. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

3:58 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Payne adjourned the meeting.

 
The June 25, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 23rd day
of July, 2024.

  
  ____________________________________

MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 25, 2024 Page 9 of 9



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

June 25, 2024
5:00 P.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 25th of June, 2024, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 5:00 p.m.

5:01 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Council Member Tim Collins; Council Member Christy
Martinez-Garcia; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council
Member Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett
Atkinson; City Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
1; and 2.1.

1. Recognition of Outgoing Mayor Tray Payne, and Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris

Mayor Tray Payne welcomed those in attendance and gave opening remarks. Pastor Larry Brooks led
the invocation.

Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson gave remarks recognizing outgoing Mayor Tray Payne and
presented him with a name plaque, a picture frame, a City of Lubbock "Tray Payne" street sign, a set
of challenge coins and a framed American flag. Mr. Payne gave remarks.

Tray Payne, former Mayor, gave remarks recognizing outgoing Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson
Harris and presented her with a name plaque, a picture frame, a City of Lubbock "Shelia Patterson
Harris" street sign, a set of challenge coins, and a framed American flag. Mrs. Patterson Harris gave
remarks.

2. Swearing-In Ceremony

2. 1. Administer the Oath of Office to newly elected Mayor and City Council Member.
(Reception immediately following.)

Council Member District 2 - Gordon Harris was sworn in by Pastor Larry Polk. Council Member
Harris gave remarks and thanked everyone in attendance and those that helped him with his campaign.

Senator Charles Perry gave remarks regarding the support from the state legislature to the City of
Lubbock and thanked Tray Payne and Shelia Patterson Harris for their service. 



 
Mayor - Mark W. McBrayer was sworn in by retired Texas Supreme Court Justice Phil Johnson.
Mayor McBrayer gave remarks and thanked his family, his supporters, his team, and his fellow
council members.
 

 

5:49 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The June 25, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 23rd day
of July, 2024.

  
  ____________________________________

MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
June 25, 2024 Page 2 of 2



 AI# 12648 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2024-O0100, Amendment 40, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Civil Service Positions; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On July 9, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

This Budget Amendment is a request to take two vacant Police Officer positions and create a new Police
Deputy Chief / Police Captain position and a new Police Sergeant position.  Any changes to civil service
positions must be made by a budget ordinance.

Currently, there are 285 Police Officer positions at pay grade PCS1.  If approved, the number of Police
Officers would be 283.
There are currently 68 Police Sergeant positions at pay grade PCS3.  If approved, the number of Police
Sergeants would be 69.
There are currently 7 Deputy Police Chief / Police Captain positions at pay grade PCS5.  If approved, the
number of Deputy Police Chief / Police Captains would be 8.

The budget ordinance references Exhibit A in making this change.  Exhibit A of the FY 2023-24
Adopted Budget, was passed by the City Council on September 12, 2023 and is page 195 of the Adopted
Budget book.  Page 195 is entitled "Police – Job Grade Summary," and will be amended as it relates to
the civil service positions. In accordance with Section 2.06.109 of the City of Lubbock Code of
Ordinances, the civil service positions, as set forth in the Amendment, are hereby established by
ordinance.

Fiscal Impact
The annual fiscal impact to this change is an additional $168,924 to the General Fund.

The entry-level costs for salary and benefits for each position are found below:
Deputy Police Chief / Captain - $176,784
Police Sergeant - $136,587
Police Officer - ($72,224) x 2 = ($144,447)

The fiscal impact for the remaining of this fiscal year (August and September 2024) would be $28,154.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments



Attachments
Budget Amendment 40 
Exhibit A 







Police ‐ Job Grade Summary Exhibit A

Actual Actual Budget Budget Amended Change 

CLASSIFIED/SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY GRADE FY 2020‐21 FY 2021‐22 FY 2022‐23 FY 2023‐24 FY 2023‐24 Budget

Police Chief 143 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Assistant Police Chief PCS6 3                         3                         3                         3                         3                         ‐             

Deputy Police Chief/Police Captain PCS5 7                         7                         7                         7                         8                         1             

Police Lieutenant PCS4 19                       19                      19                      19                      19                      ‐             

Police Sergeant PCS3 66                       68                      68                      68                      69                      1             

Police Detective/Corporal PCS2 79                       69                      69                      68                      68                      ‐             

Patrol Officer PCS1 277                     265                    278                    285                    283                    (2)           

Police Entry Level II PNCE2 ‐                          ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐             

Police Entry Level 1‐B PNCE1B 13                       13                      ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐             

TOTAL CLASSIFIED SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY 465                     445                    445                    451                    451                    ‐             

Actual Actual Budget Budget Amended Change 

NON‐CLASSIFIED NON‐SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY GRADE FY 2020‐21 FY 2021‐22 FY 2022‐23 FY 2023‐24 FY 2023‐24 Budget

Administrative Assistant 112 8                         7                         7                         4                         4                         ‐             

Communications Center Manager 126 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Communications Shift Supervisor 123 6                         6                         6                         6                         6                         ‐             

Crime Analyst 119 2                         4                         4                         4                         4                         ‐             

Fleet Services Unit Supervisor 119 ‐                          1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Fleet Services Unit Attendant 116 ‐                          2                         2                         2                         2                         ‐             

Forensic Laboratory Manager 127 ‐                          1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Forensic Specialist I 123 2                         7                         7                         6                         6                         ‐             

Forensic Specialist II 124 ‐                          ‐                         ‐                         1                         1                         ‐             

Juvenile Services Coordinator 121 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Laborer 108 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Lead Administrative Assistant 115 2                         3                         3                         6                         6                         ‐             

Management Assistant 122 2                         2                         2                         2                         2                         ‐             

Parking Control Officer 108 6                         6                         6                         6                         6                         ‐             

Property and Evidence Unit Supervisor 121 ‐                          1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Property Room Attendant 113 4                         4                         7                         7                         7                         ‐             

Public Information Officer 123 1                         5                         2                         2                         2                         ‐             

Public Information Specialist 119 1                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐             

Public Safety Dispatcher I 114 28                       28                      28                      28                      28                      ‐             

Public Safety Dispatcher II 116 15                       15                      15                      15                      15                      ‐             

Public Service Officer 110 13                       13                      13                      13                      13                      ‐             

Records System Manager 126 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Records System Operator 115 15                       15                      15                      15                      15                      ‐             

Records System Shift Supervisor 118 3                         3                         3                         3                         3                         ‐             

Sex Offender Registration Coordinator 117 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

TOTAL NON‐CLASSIFIED NON‐SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY 113                     128                    128                    128                    128                    ‐             

TOTAL JOB GRADE SUMMARY 578                     573                    573                    579                    579                    ‐             



 AI# 12649 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2024-O0101, Amendment 41, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Airport Capital Project Fund and Airport Operating Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

Item Summary
On July 9, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

I. Amend Capital Improvement Project 92839, Terminal Building Mechanical Systems Improvements,
by increasing the appropriation by $6,279,746, from $497,267 to $6,777,013. Funding changes included
are from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law Airport Terminal Program (BIL ATP) Grant for $5,294,746,
moving $460,000 from Capital Improvement Project 92361, Terminal Building Remodel, and $525,000
will be from Airport Excess Reserves.

Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92839 was first appropriated in FY 2023-24 to maintain and replace
mechanical systems for the Airport Terminal Building, to ensure the comfort and safety of airport
patrons.

Replacements are as follows: 
Replace existing Greenheck exhaust fan and curb that serves the boiler flue stack with an exhaust
system specifically designed for boiler flue systems, such as Exhausto. 
Replace all three primary chilled water pumps 
Replace all three condenser water pumps 
Replace HydroChloroFluoroCarbon (HCFC)-123 chillers 
Install refrigerant leak detection system and ASHRAE 15 accessories 
Remove sand filter from chilled water loop 
Replace Cooling Towers 
Replace condenser water sand filter with basin sweep system 
Integrate chilled water and condenser water controls system into the Automated Logic Building
Management System 
Replace all three hot water secondary pumps 
Replace Air Handling Unit (AHU)-025 
Replace AHU-026 
Replace AHU-031 
Replace AHU-032 
Replace AHU-027 
Install dust mitigation items in cooling tower pump rooms 
Replace AHU’s-013 thru -017, & -020 
Boiler Repairs/Replacement 

II. Amend Capital Improvement Project 92361, Terminal Building Remodel by decreasing the



appropriation by $460,000, from $43,775,719 to $43,315,719. The decrease is from Airport Cash.

Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92361 was first appropriated in FY 2018-19 to remodel the Airport
Terminal Building. This CIP is considered complete and will close at the end of FY 2023-24.

Fiscal Impact
The additional funding for Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92839, Terminal Building Mechanical
Systems is as follows: 

$5,294,746 will be from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law Airport Terminal Program (BIL ATP)
Grant
$460,000 will be from Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92361, Terminal Building Remodel
$525,000 will be from Airport Excess Reserves

Additional funding total is $6,279,746; with new CIP 92839 funding total at $6,777,013.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 41 







 AI# 12671 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2024-O0102, Amendment 42, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Operating Budget for Market Lubbock Inc.-Visit Lubbock and Sports Authority; providing for filing;
and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On July 9, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

I. Amend the FY 2023-24 MLI – Visit Lubbock and Sports Authority Operating Budget as shown
in Exhibit A.

Budget Amendment 42 includes a revision to the operating budget for Market Lubbock, Inc. (MLI) -
Visit Lubbock and Lubbock Sports Authority. This essential procedure is conducted each year.  This is
in an effort to ensure the effective allocation of resources and to support the growth and development of
the City. Individual reasoning for operating budget revisions are included in Exhibit A.

Fiscal Impact
Funding for Visit Lubbock and Lubbock Sports Authority comes from hotel occupancy tax based on
the annual allocation percent for each.

Every year these entities receive only budgeted hotel/motel tax revenue.  Revenue received over these
budgeted amounts are revised annually as part of a budget amendment, and are known as true-up funds. 
The budget is changing, to account for this additional revenue as well as changes to expenses.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 42 
BA 42 - Exhibit A 







Visit Lubbock

(Convention and Visitors Bureau and Lubbock Sports)
Proposed Revised Budget

Fiscal Year 2023-24

Approved Approved Approved Proposed Proposed Proposed

 Budget CVB Sports Revised Budget Revised CVB Revised Sports

2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24

REVENUES

Hotel/Motel Tax Revenue 4,902,779 3,697,485 1,205,294 4,902,779            3,697,485 1,205,294            

HOT True-Up - CVB/LSA - 584,522 1   440,824 143,698 

Investment Income 173,000 129,750 43,250 173,000 129,750 43,250 

Sale of Promotional Items 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Advertising Income - - 

Events Trust Fund Reimbursement 229,000 229,000 229,000 229,000 

Event Revenue 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 

Rent Income 6,000 4,500 1,500 6,000 4,500 1,500 

Total Revenue Sources 5,337,779             3,833,735             1,504,044             5,922,301            4,274,559 1,647,742            

Utilization of Net Assets 5,480,271 4,110,203 1,370,068 5,480,271            4,110,203 1,370,068            

Grant from CVB - (4,038,748) 4,038,748 - (4,085,050) 4,085,050            

TOTAL REVENUES 10,818,050$          3,905,190$            6,912,860$            11,402,572$        4,299,712$            7,102,860$          

EXPENSES

PERSONNEL

Compensation 1,255,200$            959,200 296,000 1,255,200            959,200 296,000 

Employee Benefits 290,700$              235,900 54,800 290,700 235,900 54,800 

PERSONNEL SUBTOTAL 1,545,900             1,195,100             350,800 1,545,900            1,195,100 350,800 

ADMINISTRATIVE

Bank Charges 1,500 1,130 370 1,500 1,130 370 

Automobile 8,000 6,000 2,000 8,000 6,000 2,000 

Pre-Employment 1,000 750 250 1,000 750 250 

Member Dues/Subscriptions 78,700 59,025 19,675 78,700 59,025 19,675 

Miscellaneous Expense 5,000 3,750 1,250 5,000 3,750 1,250 

Professional Services 198,000 148,500 49,500 258,000 2   193,500 64,500 

Staff Development 10,000 7,500 2,500 10,000 7,500 2,500 

Insurance/Workers Comp. 11,600 8,700 2,900 11,600 8,700 2,900 

Repairs and Maintenance 3,000 2,250 750 3,000 2,250 750 

Capital Asset Purchase 32,000 24,000 8,000 32,000 24,000 8,000 

Business Meetings 4,300 3,230 1,070 4,300 3,230 1,070 

ADMINISTRATIVE SUBTOTAL 353,100 264,835 88,265 413,100 309,835 103,265 

OFFICE

Postage and Shipping 5,000 3,750 1,250 5,000 3,750 1,250 

Rent 108,700 81,525 27,175 108,700 81,525 27,175 

Storage Fees 3,000 2,250 750 3,000 2,250 750 

Supplies 25,000 18,750 6,250 25,000 18,750 6,250 

Telephone 26,000 19,500 6,500 26,000 19,500 6,500 

OFFICE SUBTOTAL 167,700 125,775 41,925 167,700 125,775 41,925 

MARKETING/SALES

Industry Conventions 121,500 91,130 30,370 121,500 91,130 30,370 

Incentives 115,000 115,000 - 115,000 115,000 - 

Convention and Sports Sales 998,300 540,800 457,500 1,122,800            3   665,300 457,500 

Servicing Items 90,000 67,500 22,500 90,000 67,500 22,500 

Site Tours 180,500 170,500 10,000 180,500 170,500 10,000 

Marketing 1,501,100             1,125,850 375,250 1,601,100            4   1,200,850 400,250 

Public Relations 98,100 83,100 15,000 98,100 83,100 15,000 

Sports Servicing 521,250 - 521,250 671,250 5   - 671,250 

MARKETING/SALES SUBTOTAL 3,625,750 2,193,880 1,431,870 4,000,250            2,393,380 1,606,870            

TOURISM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Tourism Capital Projects 5,125,600             125,600 5,000,000 5,275,622            6   275,622 5,000,000            

TOURISM CAP IMPR SUBTOTAL 5,125,600             125,600 5,000,000 5,275,622            275,622 5,000,000            

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 10,818,050$          3,905,190$            6,912,860$            11,402,572$        4,299,712$            7,102,860$          

0$  -$  -$  -$  -$  (0)$  

Exhibit A



Visit Lubbock
Schedule of Explanation for Selected Accounts

Proposed Revised Budget
Fiscal Year 2023-24

Proposed
Approved Revised
2023-24 2023-24 Difference Explanation

REVENUES
1 HOT True-Up - CVB/LSA -              584,522      584,522 City estimated HOT collections allocated to Visit Lubbock for

FY2023-24, which remains flat.

EXPENSES
2 Professional Services 198,000      258,000      60,000 Increase for consultant fees related to new projects.

3 Convention and Sports Sales 998,300      1,122,800   124,500 New data service contract and FAM event sponsorships

4 Marketing 1,501,100   1,601,100   100,000 New marketing opportunities for travel promotion.

5 Sports Servicing 521,250      671,250      150,000 Rotating events potentially may need initial contracts & incentive
payments prior to fiscal year end.

6 Tourism Capital Projects 5,125,600   5,275,622   150,022 True-up available to assist with expenses related to ball fields as
allowed by TX Statute 351.101(a)(7) and visitor center as allowed 
by TX Statute 351.101(a)(1)



 AI# 12674 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 43,
amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Cable Services Fund; providing
for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Amend the Cable Services Fund FY 2023-24 Operating Budget by increasing the appropriation and
funding in the amount of $785,390, from $500,000 to $1,285,390.
Funding will be from the Cable Services Excess Reserves.

The budget amendment will allow the Communications & Public Engagement Department to complete
Phase II of the process to update, correct, and proactively integrate state-of-the-art technology into the
studio, control room, Council Chambers, and Conference Rooms in Citizens Tower, in order to broadcast
City Council meetings to the public and to stay current with communication technologies to reach our
citizens.

Phase II of this configuration includes purchase and installation of additional infrastructure and
equipment for the following:

Council Chambers:
Replacement of the outdated Crestron system (Council Chambers dias and conference rooms interface),
to improve the audio and visual quality of meetings.

Communications & Public Engagement (C&PE) Studio:
Addition of a third television camera with teleprompter, controls, lenses, and mobile base;
Replacement of non-functioning Pan/Tilt/Zoom (PTZ) Cameras on the Studio Walls; and
Addition of an LED wall to enable background content creation for videos and interviews, as well as
creation of shows for Channel 2 and social media platforms.

2nd Floor Conference Room:
Addition of three PTZ cameras on the walls, in order to broadcast meetings from this location;
Addition of one wide-angle camera and one close-up camera for the speaker, for meetings or workshops;
Addition of overhead microphones to enable broadcasts of meetings from the room, if so desired; and
Addition of remote streaming equipment to enable live-streaming events or meetings straight to Channel
2 and social platforms.

Communications & Public Engagement (C&PE) Department Offices:
Addition of two cameras and 3 microphones to enable current office space to also be used for interviews
when the studio is not available.

Fiscal Impact



The additional $785,390 funding for the Cable Services Fund FY 2023-24 Operating Budget will be
from the Cable Services Fund Excess Reserves.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 43 







 AI# 12676 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Right-of-Way Deed and one (1) Drainage Easement Deed, and all related
documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 8, Block JS, Lubbock County,
Texas (Parcel 4), on the west side of North Milwaukee Avenue and on the north side of Erskine Street, to
be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

Item Summary
With the widening of Milwaukee Avenue from the North City Limits to 4th Street as part of the 2022
Roadway Bond Project and Erskine Street from Milwaukee Avenue to Frankford Avenue, the following
street dedication and drainage easement will allow for the construction of these arterials. North
Milwaukee & Erskine Affordable Storage, LLC is dedicating right-of-way and a drainage easement to
the City of Lubbock.
 
The proponents will dedicate and donate 9,703 square feet of land for street right-of-way purpose, and
14,520 square feet of land for a drainage easement, at no cost to the City of Lubbock.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Parcel 4 Resolution 
Parcel 4 ROW Deed 
Parcel 4 Drainage Easement 
GIS Map Erskine St. - Parcel 4 
Parcel 4 MOA 
CIP Spreadsheet - 92819 - 07-02-2024 
CIP 92713 Budget Sheet 























77

TR A

74
78

73

UNSUBDIVIDED

76

UNSUBDIVIDED

91 92 93 94 95

100A 99A 98A 97A 96A

96B97B98B99B100B

HARVARD ST

FORDHAM ST

ERSKINE ST

N
 N

O
R

W
IC

H
 A

V
E

CR 6500

N
 M

IL
W

A
U

K
E

E
 A

V
E

N
 M

IL
W

A
U

K
E

E
 A

V
E

N
 M

O
N

T
IC

E
L

L
O

 A
V

E

N
 M

IL
W

A
U

K
E

E
 A

V
E

ERSKINE ST

ITASCA ST

HANOVER ST

KEMPER ST

N
 K

L
IN

E
 A

V
E

N
 K

IR
B

Y
 A

V
E

EM
ORY S

T

DUPAGE ST

N
 J

U
N

E
A

U
 A

V
E

N
 IO

L
A

 A
V

E

SHADOW HILLS

SHADOW HILLS

WILSHIRE ESTATES

WILSHIRE ESTATES

SHADOW HILLS ESTATES

SHADOW HILLS ESTATES

SPANISH BIT COURT

SPANISH BIT COURT

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Drainage & Waterline Easement and
Right-of-Way Deed

Located within Section 8, Block JS

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

Proposed ROW Deed
9,703 sq ft

N
 M

O
N

TI
C

EL
LO

 A
V

E

Proposed Drainage &
Waterline Easement

14,520 sq ft

HANOVER ST

ERSKINE ST

SHADOW HILLS

ESTATES

N
 K

IR
BY

 A
V

E

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

SPANISH BIT

COURT

N
 K

LI
N

E 
A

V
E

WILSHIR
E

PLACE
SHADOW HILLS

N
 M

IL
W

A
U

K
EE

 A
V

E
SHADOW HILLS

WILSHIR
E

ESTATES

N
 K

IR
BY

 A
V

E

N
 M

IL
W

A
U

K
EE

 A
V

E
ERSKINE ST

FORDHAM ST



181649
Text Box
24th 

181649
Text Box
June



181649
Text Box
Ken Jernberg, Right of Way Agent

181649
Text Box
6/24/24

181649
Stamp

















City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
July 2nd 2024

Capital Project Number: 92819
Capital Project Name: Milwaukee Avenue from 4th Street to the North City Limits - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                                 18,371
Contract 17087 Milwaukee Reconstruction Design & ROW with HDR, Inc.                                1,403,292
Land Acquisition to Date                                   157,708
Traffic System Improvements                                     24,494

Agenda Items, July 23rd, 2024
Erskine Parcel 4 Land Acquisition                                               -

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                1,603,865

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Property Acquisition, Utility Adjustments, and Roadway Construction                              15,396,135

Remaining Appropriation                                               -

Total Appropriation  $                          17,000,000



FY 2022-23 Operating Budget and Capital Program 322



 AI# 12681 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 39, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel
31), at the southwest corner of 34th Street and Upland Avenue, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway
Bond Project.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be utilized for roadway
improvements on the 34th Street: Upland Avenue to Milwaukee Avenue Capital Improvements Bond
Project at the southwest corner of 34th Street and Upland Avenue. The City of Lubbock purchased the
entire tract of land and removed improvements so that it could dedicate to itself the necessary
right-of-way to complete the 34th Street Bond Project. We intend to sell the remainder in the future.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 9,761 square feet tract of land for street right-of-way purpose, subject to
final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Parcel 31 - Resolution 
Parcel 31 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 31 - GIS Map 
34th Upland to Milwaukee - CIP 92813 Detail -7.23.2024 
CIP 92813 DETAIL 













928

930

929

TR N

925

927

926

TR A1

32

924

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located within Section 39, Block AK

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

34TH ST

32ND ST

MILWAUKEE

RID
GE

V
IO

LA
 A

V
E

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

UPLAND

CROSSIN
G

V
EN

IT
A

 A
V

E

TR
EN

TO
N

 A
V

E

34TH ST

33RD ST

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
9,761 sq ft

32ND ST

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

PIN
E HILLS

U
RB

A
N

A
 A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

TU
RN

ER
 A

V
E

PIN
E HILLS

V
IR

G
IN

A
 A

V
E U

RB
A

N
A

 P
L

V
A

LE
N

C
IA

 A
V

E

35TH ST

36TH ST

37TH ST

34TH PL

36TH PL

36TH ST

35TH ST

37TH ST

TI
FF

IN
 A

V
E

SA
RA

TO
G

A
 A

V
E

WESTERN

MILWAUKEE

RID
GE

UPLAND

CROSSIN
G



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
July 23, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92813
Capital Project Name: 34h Street: Upland to Milwaukee - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract 17130 with KHA for Design Services                   1,161,600
Staff Time                        25,556
Land Acquisition 3402 Upland                      500,243
Removal of Improvements                        25,760
Surveying                          4,500
Advertisement cost                             254
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17130                      158,000

Agenda Item July 23, 2024
Parcel 2 - Land Acquisition                      266,513
Parcel 31 - Land Acquisition                                  -

Encumbered/Expended To Date                   2,142,427

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
34th Street: Upland to Milwaukee - 22B Construction                 14,357,573

Remaining Appropriation                                  -

Total Appropriation  $             16,500,000



�����

����	��
���	�
��	�����	������	��	���������	������	��	��

�����	�	��������	�����	
���	���	

��	����������	��	���	��� 	!��
������
�	�����
	"���	��	#�����	�	���������	"
�������	�
��
���	

$��������%&		'��������	�
����	��	����	(�##���	���	���
�����	�
�����	�������	�����	���	����	

��
���	��

���
	�
��	�����	������	��	���������	������&	!��	��
�����	����	�������	���	

��������	������	��	�	���������	���������	���
������
�	����	��
#	���	�����
)	�
������)	

��
���������)	��������	���
��������)	�������	��*�������	���	
����	��	���	��+��������	��
�����&

	,����-������ .���������

/�	0����#�
	 )	����)	(�##���	����
�	���
����	

��������	��	�	1���	�������	��
���	���
��������	

#���	�������	��
	���	��
����	��	�
�������	

��
������	��#���	���
��������&		!��	�������	����	

��+��
�)	�����
���	���	
������
���	��
���	

���
��������)	���������	#��	���	�������	��	

���������)	�������	����	
����������	���	�
�����	

�������2�����)	�������
�	���	
������	���
�	

�
������	����������)	���	���	��+��������	��	����	���	


������������	��
	���	����	�����	����������&

	3���� 	.����
�

3�����	���
�	3���4	��5����

3�����	'���������4	��5����

6��	��
	'����������4��5����

���
�	'����
������4	��5���7

"
�*���	'���������4	�85���8

	

	

	

	

	

	(�������

90��	:������	;��
���
����
�9

<== >?@ABACDAE@FGHIJKLMN@OPQNHK@JMQ@RJGLKJS@TIUNIJV



��������������	


�����	�����

�������������������� �������� ������� ��� ����!������� ���!����"������� ���"����#������� ���#����$������� ���$����%�������

�&'(�)�*�+&' ,-./00.000 ,12.300.000 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0

45467 8�9#��9��� 8:�9$��9��� 8� 8� 8� 8� 8�

�;<�=��>


�����	�����

?�'�+'���&�@A�� �������� ������� ��� ����!������� ���!����"������� ���"����#������� ���#����$������� ���$����%�������

B�'�)AC�5DC+�A�+&'��&'�( ,-./00.000 ,12.300.000 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0

45467 8�9#��9��� 8:�9$��9��� 8� 8� 8� 8� 8�

�E<=>F��GH��I�	

����

@�(*)+J�+&' ������ ��� ��! ���!��" ���"��# ���#��$ ���$��% 4&�AC

K&��LJA*��6'�+*+JA��� ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0

45467 8� 8� 8� 8� 8� 8� 8�

MNOPQPRSPTOUVWXYZ[\]Ô_̀]WZOY\̀OaYV[ZYbOcXd]XYe fgh



 AI# 12680 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 42, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, at the
southwest corner of 34th Street and Upland Avenue, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

Item Summary
Upland Investments, LLC is dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be utilized for roadway
improvements on the 34th Street: Upland Avenue to Milwaukee Avenue Capital Improvements Bond
Project at the southwest corner of 34th Street and Upland Avenue.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 20,501 square feet tract of land for street right-of-way purpose, subject to
final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $266,513 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92813, 34th Street: Upland Avenue to Milwaukee Avenue – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Parcel 2 - Resolution 
Parcel 2 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 2 - GIS Map 
CIP 92813 Budget Detail -7.23.2024 
CIP 92813 DETAIL 















City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
July 23, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92813
Capital Project Name: 34h Street: Upland to Milwaukee - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract 17130 with KHA for Design Services                   1,161,600
Staff Time                        25,556
Land Acquisition 3402 Upland                      500,243
Removal of Improvements                        25,760
Surveying                          4,500
Advertisement cost                             254
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17130                      158,000

Agenda Item July 23, 2024
Parcel 2 - Land Acquisition                      266,513
Parcel 31 - Land Acquisition                                  -

Encumbered/Expended To Date                   2,142,427

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
34th Street: Upland to Milwaukee - 22B Construction                 14,357,573

Remaining Appropriation                                  -

Total Appropriation  $             16,500,000



�����

����	��
���	�
��	�����	������	��	���������	������	��	��

�����	�	��������	�����	
���	���	

��	����������	��	���	��� 	!��
������
�	�����
	"���	��	#�����	�	���������	"
�������	�
��
���	

$��������%&		'��������	�
����	��	����	(�##���	���	���
�����	�
�����	�������	�����	���	����	

��
���	��

���
	�
��	�����	������	��	���������	������&	!��	��
�����	����	�������	���	

��������	������	��	�	���������	���������	���
������
�	����	��
#	���	�����
)	�
������)	

��
���������)	��������	���
��������)	�������	��*�������	���	
����	��	���	��+��������	��
�����&

	,����-������ .���������

/�	0����#�
	 )	����)	(�##���	����
�	���
����	

��������	��	�	1���	�������	��
���	���
��������	

#���	�������	��
	���	��
����	��	�
�������	

��
������	��#���	���
��������&		!��	�������	����	

��+��
�)	�����
���	���	
������
���	��
���	

���
��������)	���������	#��	���	�������	��	

���������)	�������	����	
����������	���	�
�����	

�������2�����)	�������
�	���	
������	���
�	

�
������	����������)	���	���	��+��������	��	����	���	


������������	��
	���	����	�����	����������&

	3���� 	.����
�

3�����	���
�	3���4	��5����

3�����	'���������4	��5����

6��	��
	'����������4��5����

���
�	'����
������4	��5���7

"
�*���	'���������4	�85���8

	

	

	

	

	

	(�������

90��	:������	;��
���
����
�9

<== >?@ABACDAE@FGHIJKLMN@OPQNHK@JMQ@RJGLKJS@TIUNIJV



��������������	


�����	�����

�������������������� �������� ������� ��� ����!������� ���!����"������� ���"����#������� ���#����$������� ���$����%�������

�&'(�)�*�+&' ,-./00.000 ,12.300.000 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0

45467 8�9#��9��� 8:�9$��9��� 8� 8� 8� 8� 8�

�;<�=��>


�����	�����

?�'�+'���&�@A�� �������� ������� ��� ����!������� ���!����"������� ���"����#������� ���#����$������� ���$����%�������

B�'�)AC�5DC+�A�+&'��&'�( ,-./00.000 ,12.300.000 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0

45467 8�9#��9��� 8:�9$��9��� 8� 8� 8� 8� 8�

�E<=>F��GH��I�	

����

@�(*)+J�+&' ������ ��� ��! ���!��" ���"��# ���#��$ ���$��% 4&�AC

K&��LJA*��6'�+*+JA��� ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0 ,0

45467 8� 8� 8� 8� 8� 8� 8�

MNOPQPRSPTOUVWXYZ[\]Ô_̀]WZOY\̀OaYV[ZYbOcXd]XYe fgh



 AI# 12682 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 8. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 1, Block D-6, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel
6), on the west side of Upland Avenue across from 12th Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond
Project.

Item Summary
Dennis K. Mote and Ruth Ann Mote are dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be utilized for
roadway improvements on the Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street Capital Improvements Bond
Project on the west side of Upland Avenue across from 12th Street.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 3,433 square feet tract of land for street right-of-way purpose, subject to
final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $24,740 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92812, Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Parcel 6 - Resolution 
Parcel 6 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 6 - GIS Map 
Upland 4th to 19th - Budget Detail 
Upland 4th to 19th - CIP Detail - 7.3.2024 













As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located within Section 1, Block D6

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

V
IO

LA
 A

V
E

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

V
A

LE
N

C
IA

 A
V

E

FRENSHIP

MID
DLE

SCHOOL

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
3,433 sq ft

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

URBA
N

A
 A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

BURGAMY

PARK

NORTH

8TH ST

9TH ST 9TH ST

FRENSHIP

MID
DLE

SCHOOL

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

BURGAMY

PARK

RO
C

H
ES

TE
R 

A
V

E

12TH ST

RO
SS

 A
V

E

15TH ST

12TH ST



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 4th Street to 19th Street is currently a two-lane paved road and is 
designated in the 2018 Thoroughfare Master Plan to become a five-lane modified principal 
arterial roadway.  Continued growth in northwest Lubbock has increased traffic demands 
along the north Upland Avenue street corridor from 4th Street to 19th Street.  The roadway 
contract will  design and build  three-lanes at the ultimate configuration of the fully designed 
five lane thoroughfare.  

Project Justi�cation  Project Highlights

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved 
issuance of a $200 million street improvements 
bond package for the purpose of providing 
permanent public improvements.  The funding will 
acquire, construct and reconstruct street 
improvements, including but not limited to 
sidewalks, utility line relocations and traffic 
signalization, necessary and related storm 
drainage facilities, and the acquisition of land and 
rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Council Priorities Addressed: 
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development 

Project Dates Project History

Design Start Date: 02/2023
Design Completion: 08/2025
Bid for Constuction:10/2025
Award Construction: 12/2025
Project Completion: 06/2027

 
 
 

Project Location

Upland Ave - 4th Street to 19th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Construction $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92812CIP 92812 Upland Avenue from 4th Upland Avenue from 4th  
Street to 19th Street - 22BStreet to 19th Street - 22B

New Roadway InfrastructureNew Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Josh Kristinek - EngineeringProject Manager: Josh Kristinek - Engineering

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 334



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 335



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time 10,224                      
Contract 17113 with Half Associates, Inc. for Design Services 949,700                    

Agenda Item July 23, 2024
Parcel 6 - Land Acquisition 24,740                      
Parcel 7 - Land Acquisition 13,633                      
Parcel 8 - Land Acquisition 54,487                      
Parcel 13 - Land Acquisition 51,018                      
Parcel 16 - Land Acquisition 63,785                      
Parcel 21 - Land Acquisition 36,621                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,204,208                 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B Construction 1,995,792                 

Remaining Appropriation -                                

Total Appropriation 3,200,000$               

City of Lubbock

92821
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B

Capital Project 
Project Cost Detail

July 23, 2024



 AI# 12683 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 9. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 1, Block D-6, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel
7), on the west side of Upland Avenue, north of 12th Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond
Project.

Item Summary
Dennis K. Mote and Ruth Ann Mote are dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be utilized for
roadway improvements on the Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street Capital Improvements Bond
Project on the west side of Upland Avenue, north of 12th Street.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 2,197 square feet tract of land for street right-of-way purpose, subject to
final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $13,633 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92812, Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Parcel 7 - Resolution 
Parcel 7 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 7 - GIS Map 
CIP Budget Detail - 7.3.2024 
Upland 4th to 19th - CIP Detail 













As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located within Section 1, Block D6

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

V
IO

LA
 A

V
E

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

GEORGE'S

RENTALS

V
A

LE
N

C
IA

 A
V

E

FRENSHIP

MID
DLE

SCHOOL

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
2,197 sq ft

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

URBA
N

A
 A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

BURGAMY

PARK

NORTH

8TH ST

9TH ST 9TH ST

FRENSHIP

MID
DLE

SCHOOL

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

BURGAMY

PARK

RO
C

H
ES

TE
R 

A
V

E

12TH ST

RO
SS

 A
V

E

15TH ST



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time 10,224                      
Contract 17113 with Half Associates, Inc. for Design Services 949,700                    

Agenda Item July 23, 2024
Parcel 6 - Land Acquisition 24,740                      
Parcel 7 - Land Acquisition 13,633                      
Parcel 8 - Land Acquisition 54,487                      
Parcel 13 - Land Acquisition 51,018                      
Parcel 16 - Land Acquisition 63,785                      
Parcel 21 - Land Acquisition 36,621                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,204,208                 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B Construction 1,995,792                 

Remaining Appropriation -                                

Total Appropriation 3,200,000$               

City of Lubbock

92821
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B

Capital Project 
Project Cost Detail

July 23, 2024



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 4th Street to 19th Street is currently a two-lane paved road and is 
designated in the 2018 Thoroughfare Master Plan to become a five-lane modified principal 
arterial roadway.  Continued growth in northwest Lubbock has increased traffic demands 
along the north Upland Avenue street corridor from 4th Street to 19th Street.  The roadway 
contract will  design and build  three-lanes at the ultimate configuration of the fully designed 
five lane thoroughfare.  

Project Justi�cation  Project Highlights

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved 
issuance of a $200 million street improvements 
bond package for the purpose of providing 
permanent public improvements.  The funding will 
acquire, construct and reconstruct street 
improvements, including but not limited to 
sidewalks, utility line relocations and traffic 
signalization, necessary and related storm 
drainage facilities, and the acquisition of land and 
rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Council Priorities Addressed: 
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development 

Project Dates Project History

Design Start Date: 02/2023
Design Completion: 08/2025
Bid for Constuction:10/2025
Award Construction: 12/2025
Project Completion: 06/2027

 
 
 

Project Location

Upland Ave - 4th Street to 19th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Construction $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92812CIP 92812 Upland Avenue from 4th Upland Avenue from 4th  
Street to 19th Street - 22BStreet to 19th Street - 22B

New Roadway InfrastructureNew Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Josh Kristinek - EngineeringProject Manager: Josh Kristinek - Engineering

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 334



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 335



 AI# 12684 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 10. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 1, Block D-6, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel
8), at the southwest corner of Upland Avenue and 9th Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond
Project.

Item Summary
806 Land Development Group LLC is dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be utilized for
roadway improvements on the Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street Capital Improvements Bond
Project at the southwest corner of Upland Avenue and 9th Street.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 9,476 square feet tract of land for street right-of-way purpose, subject to
final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $54,487 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92812, Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Parcel 8 - Resolution 
Parcel 8 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 8 - GIS Map 
CIP Budget Detail - 7.3.2024 
CIP 92812 Detail 















TR A

61

80

7376

82

62

7958

83

59
75

8788

56
78

81

74
55

8586

72
57 60

84

77

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located within Section 1, Block D6

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

TERRA VISTA

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

BURGAMY

PARK NORTH

HID
EAWAY

ESTATES

FRENSHIP

MID
DLE

SCHOOL

12TH ST

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
9,476 sq ft

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

8TH ST

9TH ST

9TH ST

TOWN & COUNTRY

MOBILE ESTATES

4TH ST    FM 2255

FRENSHIP

MID
DLE

SCHOOL

BURGAMY

PARK

9TH ST

15TH ST

16TH ST

RO
SS

 A
V

E

Q
U

N
IC

Y
 A

V
E



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time 10,224                      
Contract 17113 with Half Associates, Inc. for Design Services 949,700                    

Agenda Item July 23, 2024
Parcel 6 - Land Acquisition 24,740                      
Parcel 7 - Land Acquisition 13,633                      
Parcel 8 - Land Acquisition 54,487                      
Parcel 13 - Land Acquisition 51,018                      
Parcel 16 - Land Acquisition 63,785                      
Parcel 21 - Land Acquisition 36,621                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,204,208                 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B Construction 1,995,792                 

Remaining Appropriation -                                

Total Appropriation 3,200,000$               

City of Lubbock

92821
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B

Capital Project 
Project Cost Detail

July 23, 2024



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 4th Street to 19th Street is currently a two-lane paved road and is 
designated in the 2018 Thoroughfare Master Plan to become a five-lane modified principal 
arterial roadway.  Continued growth in northwest Lubbock has increased traffic demands 
along the north Upland Avenue street corridor from 4th Street to 19th Street.  The roadway 
contract will  design and build  three-lanes at the ultimate configuration of the fully designed 
five lane thoroughfare.  

Project Justi�cation  Project Highlights

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved 
issuance of a $200 million street improvements 
bond package for the purpose of providing 
permanent public improvements.  The funding will 
acquire, construct and reconstruct street 
improvements, including but not limited to 
sidewalks, utility line relocations and traffic 
signalization, necessary and related storm 
drainage facilities, and the acquisition of land and 
rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Council Priorities Addressed: 
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development 

Project Dates Project History

Design Start Date: 02/2023
Design Completion: 08/2025
Bid for Constuction:10/2025
Award Construction: 12/2025
Project Completion: 06/2027

 
 
 

Project Location

Upland Ave - 4th Street to 19th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Construction $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92812CIP 92812 Upland Avenue from 4th Upland Avenue from 4th  
Street to 19th Street - 22BStreet to 19th Street - 22B

New Roadway InfrastructureNew Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Josh Kristinek - EngineeringProject Manager: Josh Kristinek - Engineering

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 334



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 335



 AI# 12685 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 11. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 1, Block D-6, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel
13), on the west side of Upland Avenue, south of 4th Street, north of 8th Street, to be utilized for the
2022 Roadway Bond Project.

Item Summary
Dean E. Raymond and Vicki D. Raymond are dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be
utilized for roadway improvements on the Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street Capital
Improvements Bond Project on the west side of Upland Avenue, south of 4th Street, north of 8th Street.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 5,807 square feet tract of land for street right-of-way purpose, subject to
final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $51,018 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92812, Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Parcel 13 - Resolution 
Parcel 13 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 13 - GIS Map 
Upland 4th to 19th - Budget Detail 
Upland 4th to 19th - CIP Detail - 7.23.2024 













UNSUBDIVIDED

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located within Section 1, Block D6

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

4TH ST  FM 2255

V
IO

LA
 A

V
E

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

GEORGE'S

RENTAL

V
EN

IT
A

 A
V

E

TOWN &
 COUNTRY

MOBILE ESTATES

3RD ST

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
5,807 sq ft

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

FRIENDSHIP

ESTATES

URBA
N

A
 A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

HID
EAWAY

ESTATES

8TH ST

9TH ST 9TH ST

TOWN & COUNTRY

MOBILE ESTATES

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 4th Street to 19th Street is currently a two-lane paved road and is 
designated in the 2018 Thoroughfare Master Plan to become a five-lane modified principal 
arterial roadway.  Continued growth in northwest Lubbock has increased traffic demands 
along the north Upland Avenue street corridor from 4th Street to 19th Street.  The roadway 
contract will  design and build  three-lanes at the ultimate configuration of the fully designed 
five lane thoroughfare.  

Project Justi�cation  Project Highlights

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved 
issuance of a $200 million street improvements 
bond package for the purpose of providing 
permanent public improvements.  The funding will 
acquire, construct and reconstruct street 
improvements, including but not limited to 
sidewalks, utility line relocations and traffic 
signalization, necessary and related storm 
drainage facilities, and the acquisition of land and 
rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Council Priorities Addressed: 
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development 

Project Dates Project History

Design Start Date: 02/2023
Design Completion: 08/2025
Bid for Constuction:10/2025
Award Construction: 12/2025
Project Completion: 06/2027

 
 
 

Project Location

Upland Ave - 4th Street to 19th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Construction $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92812CIP 92812 Upland Avenue from 4th Upland Avenue from 4th  
Street to 19th Street - 22BStreet to 19th Street - 22B

New Roadway InfrastructureNew Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Josh Kristinek - EngineeringProject Manager: Josh Kristinek - Engineering

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 334



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 335



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time 10,224                      
Contract 17113 with Half Associates, Inc. for Design Services 949,700                    

Agenda Item July 23, 2024
Parcel 6 - Land Acquisition 24,740                      
Parcel 7 - Land Acquisition 13,633                      
Parcel 8 - Land Acquisition 54,487                      
Parcel 13 - Land Acquisition 51,018                      
Parcel 16 - Land Acquisition 63,785                      
Parcel 21 - Land Acquisition 36,621                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,204,208                 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B Construction 1,995,792                 

Remaining Appropriation -                                

Total Appropriation 3,200,000$               

City of Lubbock

92821
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B

Capital Project 
Project Cost Detail

July 23, 2024



 AI# 12686 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 12. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 1, Block D-6, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel
16), at the southeast corner of Upland Avenue and 4th Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond
Project.

Item Summary
806 Land Development Group LLC is dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be utilized for
roadway improvements on the Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street Capital Improvements Bond
Project at the southeast corner of Upland Avenue and 4th Street.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 6,551 square feet tract of land for street right-of-way purpose, subject to
final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $63,784.50 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92812, Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Parcel 16 - Resolution 
Parcel 16 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 16 - GIS Map 
Upland 4th to 19th - Budget Detail 
Upland 4th to 19th - CIP Detail - 7.23.2024 















As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located within Section 10, Block JS

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

GEORGE'S

RENTALS

FRENSHIP

ESTATES

TOWN &
 COUNTRY

MOBILE ESTATES

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
6,551 sq ft

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

3RD ST

HID
EAWAY

APARTMENTS

4TH ST   FM 2255

4TH ST   FM 2255

TOWN & COUNTRY

MOBILE ESTATES

2ND ST



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 4th Street to 19th Street is currently a two-lane paved road and is 
designated in the 2018 Thoroughfare Master Plan to become a five-lane modified principal 
arterial roadway.  Continued growth in northwest Lubbock has increased traffic demands 
along the north Upland Avenue street corridor from 4th Street to 19th Street.  The roadway 
contract will  design and build  three-lanes at the ultimate configuration of the fully designed 
five lane thoroughfare.  

Project Justi�cation  Project Highlights

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved 
issuance of a $200 million street improvements 
bond package for the purpose of providing 
permanent public improvements.  The funding will 
acquire, construct and reconstruct street 
improvements, including but not limited to 
sidewalks, utility line relocations and traffic 
signalization, necessary and related storm 
drainage facilities, and the acquisition of land and 
rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Council Priorities Addressed: 
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development 

Project Dates Project History

Design Start Date: 02/2023
Design Completion: 08/2025
Bid for Constuction:10/2025
Award Construction: 12/2025
Project Completion: 06/2027

 
 
 

Project Location

Upland Ave - 4th Street to 19th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Construction $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92812CIP 92812 Upland Avenue from 4th Upland Avenue from 4th  
Street to 19th Street - 22BStreet to 19th Street - 22B

New Roadway InfrastructureNew Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Josh Kristinek - EngineeringProject Manager: Josh Kristinek - Engineering

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 334



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 335



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time 10,224                      
Contract 17113 with Half Associates, Inc. for Design Services 949,700                    

Agenda Item July 23, 2024
Parcel 6 - Land Acquisition 24,740                      
Parcel 7 - Land Acquisition 13,633                      
Parcel 8 - Land Acquisition 54,487                      
Parcel 13 - Land Acquisition 51,018                      
Parcel 16 - Land Acquisition 63,785                      
Parcel 21 - Land Acquisition 36,621                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,204,208                 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B Construction 1,995,792                 

Remaining Appropriation -                                

Total Appropriation 3,200,000$               

City of Lubbock

92821
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B

Capital Project 
Project Cost Detail

July 23, 2024



 AI# 12687 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 13. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 1, Block D-6, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel
21), at the northeast corner of Upland Avenue and 19th Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond
Project.

Item Summary
806 Land Development Group LLC is dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be utilized for
roadway improvements on the Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street Capital Improvements Bond
Project at the northeast corner of Upland Avenue and 19th Street.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 2,817 square feet tract of land for street right-of-way purpose, subject to
final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $36,621 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92812, Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Parcel 21 - Resolution 
Parcel 21 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 21 - GIS Map 
Upland 4th to 19th - Budget Detail 
Upland 4th to 19th - CIP Detail - 7.23.2024 















TR F

TR D

TR F1

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located within Section 10, Block JS

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

21ST ST

CARAVAN
Proposed Street Deed Dedication

2,817 sq ft

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

U
RB

A
N

A
 P

L

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

BURGAMY

PARK

18TH ST

18TH ST

CARAVAN U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

BUSHLAND SPRIN
GS

RO
C

H
ES

TE
R 

A
V

E

19TH ST   SH 114

RO
SS

 A
V

E

21ST ST

19TH ST   SH 114

18TH PL

RO
C

H
ES

TE
R 

A
V

E

CARLISLE

TOOT' N
 TOTUM

NO. 6



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 4th Street to 19th Street is currently a two-lane paved road and is 
designated in the 2018 Thoroughfare Master Plan to become a five-lane modified principal 
arterial roadway.  Continued growth in northwest Lubbock has increased traffic demands 
along the north Upland Avenue street corridor from 4th Street to 19th Street.  The roadway 
contract will  design and build  three-lanes at the ultimate configuration of the fully designed 
five lane thoroughfare.  

Project Justi�cation  Project Highlights

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved 
issuance of a $200 million street improvements 
bond package for the purpose of providing 
permanent public improvements.  The funding will 
acquire, construct and reconstruct street 
improvements, including but not limited to 
sidewalks, utility line relocations and traffic 
signalization, necessary and related storm 
drainage facilities, and the acquisition of land and 
rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Council Priorities Addressed: 
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development 

Project Dates Project History

Design Start Date: 02/2023
Design Completion: 08/2025
Bid for Constuction:10/2025
Award Construction: 12/2025
Project Completion: 06/2027

 
 
 

Project Location

Upland Ave - 4th Street to 19th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Construction $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92812CIP 92812 Upland Avenue from 4th Upland Avenue from 4th  
Street to 19th Street - 22BStreet to 19th Street - 22B

New Roadway InfrastructureNew Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Josh Kristinek - EngineeringProject Manager: Josh Kristinek - Engineering

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 334



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $9,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 335



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time 10,224                      
Contract 17113 with Half Associates, Inc. for Design Services 949,700                    

Agenda Item July 23, 2024
Parcel 6 - Land Acquisition 24,740                      
Parcel 7 - Land Acquisition 13,633                      
Parcel 8 - Land Acquisition 54,487                      
Parcel 13 - Land Acquisition 51,018                      
Parcel 16 - Land Acquisition 63,785                      
Parcel 21 - Land Acquisition 36,621                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,204,208                 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B Construction 1,995,792                 

Remaining Appropriation -                                

Total Appropriation 3,200,000$               

City of Lubbock

92821
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B

Capital Project 
Project Cost Detail

July 23, 2024



 AI# 12694 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 14. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1)Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and (1) Water Line Easement
Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 38, Block
AK, of the GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 12), on the east side of Upland
Avenue, at the railroad crossing, to be utilized for the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

Item Summary
Timothy A. Oliver and wife, Melissa A. Oliver are dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be
utilized for roadway improvements on the Upland: 34th Street to 50th Street Capital Improvements Bond
Project on the east side of Upland Avenue, at the railroad crossing.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 5,193 square feet tract of land for street right-of-way purpose, and a
3,462 square feet tract of land for a water line easement, subject to final approval by the City Council
and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $100,000 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92815, Upland Avenue: 34th Street to 50th Street – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Parcel 12 - Resolution 
Parcel 12 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 12 - Signed Waterline Easement 
Parcel 12 - GIS Map 
92815 - Upland Ave from 34th St to 50th St - 22B 
CIP Spreadsheet 92815 7-23-2024 





























As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication & Waterline Easement
Located within Section 38, Block AK

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

Proposed Waterline Easement
3,462 sq ft

40TH ST

41ST ST

36TH STUPLAND

CROSSIN
G

TU
RN

ER
 A

V
E

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 20050
Feet

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

MILWAUKEE RID
GE

FRENSHIP

EAST

ROSS AVE

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

TR
EN

TO
N

 A
V

E

Proposed Street Dedication Deed
5,193 sq ft

TR
EN

TO
N

 A
V

E

FRENSHIP

EAST



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 34th Street to 50th Street is currently a two-lane paved road and is designated in the 
2018 Thoroughfare Master Plan to become a f ive-lane Principal Arterial (Modif ied).  Continued growth in 
west Lubbock has increased traff ic demands along the Upland Avenue corridor from 34th Street to 50th 
Street.  This thoroughfare wil l  include the ult imate design of a f ive-lane undivided thoroughfare with curb and 
gutter, drainage, streetl ights, sidewalk improvements, uti l i ty adjustment and right of way acquisit ion 
services.

Project Justification  Project Highlights

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved 
issuance of a $200 million street improvements 
bond package for the purpose of providing 
permanent public improvements.  The funding will 
acquire, construct and reconstruct street 
improvements, including but not limited to 
sidewalks, utility line relocations and traffic 
signalization, necessary and related storm 
drainage facilities, and the acquisition of land and 
rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Council Priorities Addressed: 
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development 

Project Dates Project History

Design Start Date: 01/2023
Design Completion: 01/2024
Bid for Constuction:01/2024
Award Construction: 03/2024
Project Completion: 09/2025

 
 
 

Project Location

Upland Ave - 34th to 50th St

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Construction $4,000,000 $13,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $4,000,000 $13,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92815CIP 92815 Upland Ave from 34th Upland Ave from 34th  
Street to 50th Street - 22BStreet to 50th Street - 22B

New Roadway InfrastructureNew Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Josh Kristinek - EngineeringProject Manager: Josh Kristinek - Engineering



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $4,000,000 $13,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $4,000,000 $13,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

OpenGov

Powering more effective and accountable goverment.

www.OpenGov.com

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Staff - Full Time 27,244$                    
Contract 17074 with Freese and Nichols for Design Services 1,639,143                 
Contract 17074 Amendment 1 with Freese and Nichols 393,388                    
Parcel 1 - ROW Acquisition 13,874                      
Parcel 3 - ROW Acquisition 10,347                      
Parcel 4 - ROW Acquisition 15,482                      
Parcel 13 - ROW Acquisition 74,031                      
Parcel 19 - ROW Acquisition 44,249                      
Parcel 20 - ROW Acquisition 1,721                        
Parcel 8 - ROW Acquisition 36,507                      
Parcel 9 - ROW Acquisition 82,662                      
Parcel 10 - ROW Acquisition 122,146                    
Parcel 11 - ROW Acquisition 22,064                      
Parcel 22 - ROW Acquisition 55,385                      
Parcel 14 - ROW Acquisition 25,711                      
Parcel 15 - ROW Acquisition 3,984                        
Parcel 2 - ROW Acquisition 13,121                      
Parcel 6 - ROW Acquisition 12,360                      
Parcel 7 - ROW Acquisition 95,666                      
Parcel 17 - ROW Acquisition 1,125                        
Parcel 18 - ROW Acquisition 28,405                      
Parcel 21 - ROW Acquisition 44,115                      

Agenda Item July 23, 2024
Parcel 12 - ROW Acquisition 100,000                    

Encumbered/Expended To Date 2,862,731                 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Land Acquisition and Construction 1,137,269                 

Remaining Appropriation -                                

Total Appropriation 4,000,000$               

City of Lubbock

Upland Ave: 34th to 50th Street - 22B

Capital Project 
Project Cost Detail

July 23, 2024

92815



 AI# 12695 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 15. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept a Real Estate Sales
Contract, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Lubbock Land Holdings,
LLC, for the purchase of real property located in Lot 21, 82nd Acres Addition to the City of Lubbock,
Lubbock County, on the east side of I-27, south of 82nd Street, to be used for drainage improvements on
the 2022 Roadway Bond Project.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is acquiring land to be utilized for drainage improvements on the 82nd Street: I-27
to MLK JR Boulevard Capital Improvements Bond Project on the east side of I-27, south of 82nd Street.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 162,697 square feet tract of land for drainage purposes, subject to final
approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $700,000 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92825, 82nd Street: I-27 to MLK JR Boulevard – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
8901 HWY 87 - Resolution 
8901 HWY 87 - Contract 
CIP Spreadsheet - (92825) - 7-23-2024 







































City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
July 10, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92825
Capital Project Name: Street Bond 82nd and MLK - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                                 12,518
Contract 17088 with LAN for Design Services on 82nd and MLK                                3,424,877

Agenda Items, July 23rd 2024
Land Purchase                                   700,000

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                4,137,395

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Purchase of Land and Roadway Construction                                1,562,605

Remaining Appropriation                                1,562,605

Total Appropriation  $                            5,700,000



 AI# 12677 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 16. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Change Order No. 2
to Contract 16162, with Landmark Structures, LP, related to the construction completion of the 2.0
Million Gallon Elevated Storage Tanks at 3rd Street and University Avenue and 87th Street and Avenue
P.

Item Summary
The City Council authorized Construction Contract 16162 with Landmark Structures, LP on February 8,
2022, for the construction of 2.0 Million Gallon Elevated Storage Tanks at 3rd Street and University
Avenue and at 87th Street and Avenue P, for $16,428,784 and 740 days for completion. The Notice to
Proceed was given on February 21, 2022.

Change Order No. 1, authorized on February 1, 2023, included modifications for the mixing systems and
the addition of position indicators to the altitude valves, to the Elevated Storage Tanks at 50th Street and
Indiana Avenue, Milwaukee Avenue and 104th Street, 3rd Street and University Avenue, and 87th Street
and Avenue P.

Change Order No. 2 will include the following:
• Installing access tube plugs, a temperature transmitter, and drainage flume extensions, constructing an
additional concrete apron and partial driveway, and painting the City of Lubbock logo at the 87th Street
and Avenue P site; 
• Altering the Concrete Masonry Unit (CMU) wall to better fit the 3rd Street and University Avenue site
and making security system modifications due to the CMU wall changes; and
•Applying an anti-graffiti coating to the sites at 3rd Street and University Avenue and 87th Street and
Avenue P.

The net increase in contract price, due to Change Order No. 2, is $64,053 and an additional 65
construction days. The new contract amount is $16,535,102.24 with a construction time of 805 days.

Fiscal Impact
Change Order No. 2, for $64,053, is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92753, Elevated Storage
Tanks.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., CFM, Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution - Lubbock Landmark Structures 



Change Order No. 2 
Executed Change Order No. 1 
Executed Contract 16162 
Map - Location Exhibit 
CIP 92753-Budget Detail 
CIP 92753-Cost Detail 

























































Resolution No. 2022- R0079

Item No. 7. 6

February 8, 2022

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Contract No. 16162 for 87u' Street and P Street 2. 0
MG Elevated Storage Tanks, by and between the City of Lubbock and Landmark Structures I, 
L.P., of Fort Worth, Texas, and related documents. Said Contract is attached hereto and

incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of
the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on February 8, 2022

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST: 

Re cca Garza, City S ret ry

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

I:1»; 7

Assistant City Manager

City Attorney

vw:ccdocs/ RES. Contract- Landmark Structures

December 20, 2021



REVISED- 1

PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL FORM

PRICE PROPOSAL CONTRACT

DATE: December 2, 2n7 i

PROJECT NUMBER: RFP 22- 16162- TF 87th Street and 3rd Street 2.0 MG Elevated Storage Tanks

Proposal of Landmark Structures I. L. P. ( hereinafter

called Offeror) 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Lubbock, Texas (hereinafter called Owner) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The Offeror, in compliance with your Request for Proposals for the 87th Street and 3rd Street 2.0 MG
Elevated Storage Tanks having carefully examined the plans, specifications, instructions to offerors, notice
to offerors and all other related contract documents and the site of the intended work, and being familiar with
all of the conditions surrounding the construction of the intended project including the availability of
materials and labor, hereby intends to furnish all labor, materials, and supplies; and to construct the project
in accordance with the plans, specifications and contract documents, within the time set forth therein and at
the price stated. The price to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the contract
documents. 

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION TIME: 

1. Contractors proposed CONSTRUCTION TIME for completion: 

TOTAL CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR DAYS: 740 ( to Substantial Completion) 

TOTAL CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR DAYS: 800 to Final Completion) 

not to exceed 740 consecutive calendar days to Substantial Completion / 800 consecutive calendar days
to Final Completion). 

Offeror hereby agrees to commence the work on the above project on a date to be specified in a written
Notice to Proceed" of the Owner and to substantially complete the project within 740 Consecutive
Calendar Days with final completion within 800 Consecutive Calendar Days as stipulated in the

specification and other contract documents. Offeror hereby further agrees to pay to Owner as liquidated
damages in the sum of $ 1, 204.28 for each consecutive calendar day after substantial completion and
liquidated damages in the sum of $1, 204.28 for each consecutive calendar day after final completion set forth
herein above for completion of this project, all as more fully set forth in the General Conditions of the
Agreement. 

Offeror understands and agrees that this proposal submittal shall be completed and submitted in
accordance with instruction number 28 of the General Instructions to Offerors. Offeror understands that the

Owner reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to waive any formality in the proposing. The
Offeror agrees that this proposal shall be good for a period of sixty 60 calendar days after the scheduled
closing time for receiving proposals. 

The undersigned Offeror hereby declares that he has visited the site of the work and has carefully
examined the plans, specifications and contract documents pertaining to the work covered by this proposal, 



City of Lubbock, TX
Public Works

RFP 22- 16162- TF

87th Street and 3rd Street 2. 0 MG Elevated Storage Tanks

Landmark Structures I, L.P. of Fort Worth, TX

Item
Description

87th Street EST

87th Street 2. 0 MG Composite EST and all

1- 1 Other Pertinent Work Not Included in Item A — 

General Items

A. 87th Street EST General Items

24 Tank Electrical

2- 2 Bowl Lighting
2- 3 SCADA

2- 4 Tank Mixing System

Interior Coating System for 87th Street EST — 
2- 5

IW-02

2- 6 Pedestal Blasting
2- 7 Site Clearing, Grubbing, and Earthwork
2- 8 Chain -Link Fencing
2- 9 8" Concrete Paving

2- 10 87th Street Paving; Earthwork
2- 11 2" Type C HMAC and Subgrade

2- 12 Curb and Gutter

2- 13
Changed 20" water line from

Concrete Swale bar -wrapped pipe to ductile iron. 

2- 14 20" Water Line ` 

2- 15 Connection to Existing 20" Water Line
2- 16 20" Butterfly Valve
2- 17 6" FH Assembly
2- 18 4" Sewer Line

2- 19 Trench Safety
2- 20 SWPPP

2- 21
Mobilization ( Not to exceed 3% of Base Bid) 

3rd Street EST

3rd Street 2. 0 MG Composite EST — and All

3- 1 Other Pertinent Work Not Included in Item B — 

General Items

B. 3rd Street EST General Items

4- 1 Tank Electrical
Removed requirement for

intrusion detection at the 3rd

4- 2 Bowl Lighting street site. 

4- 3 SCADA

44 Tank Mixing System

QTY
UoM

Unit Cost Extended Cost

1 LS 5, 859, 000. 00 5, 859, 000. 00

1 LS 350, 000. 00 350, 000. 00

1 LS 90,000. 00 90, 000. 00

1 LS 100, 000. 00 100, 000. 00

1 LS 40,000. 00 40, 000. 00

1 LS 280, 000. 00 280, 000. 00

1

1

1011

591

1

770

637

1

183

1

1

1

166

349

1

1

LS 12, 000. 00

LS 155, 000. 00

LF 55. 00

SY 120. 00

LS 30,000. 00

LF 195. 00

LF 30.00

LS 11, 200.00

LF 1, 122. 151--650.00

EA 27, 200. 00

EA 21, 500. 00

EA 12, 415. 00

LF 25. 00

LF 5. 00

LS 5, 000. 00

LS 162, 055. 00

LS 6,385, 000. 00

12, 000. 00

155, 000. 00

55, 605. 00

70, 920. 00

30, 000. 00

150, 150. 00

19, 110. 00

11, 200. 00

50.00- 
53. 45

27, 200. 00

21, 500. 00

12, 415. 00

4, 150. 00

1, 745. 00

5, 000. 00

162, 055. 00

6, 385, 000. 00

393, 200. 00 393, 200. 00

1 LS 500, 0

1 LS 90,000. 00 90, 000. 00

1 LS 100, 000. 00 100, 000. 00

1 LS 40,000. 00 40, 000. 00



City of Lubbock, TX
Public Works

RFP 22- 16162- TF

87th Street and 3rd Street 2. 0 MG Elevated Storage Tanks

Landmark Structures I, L.P. of Fort Worth, TX

Item
Description

QTY
UoM

Unit Cost Extended Cost

Interior Coating System for 3rd Street EST — 
4- 5

IW- 02
1 LS 280, 000. 00 280, 000. 00

4- 6 Pedestal Blasting 1 LS 12, 000. 00 12, 000. 00

4- 7 Site Clearing, Grubbing, and Earthwork 1 LS 155, 000. 00 155, 000. 00

4- 8 Site Demolition 1 LS 400, 000. 00 400, 000. 00

0 * 7-7 LF 0. 00450. 0 394,650. W 0. 00

4- 10 Chain -Link Fencing 966 —81} LF 55. 00 150. 0(4 1 }} 5(). 53, 130

4- 11 8" Concrete Paving % Using only chain - link fencing 460 SY 130. 00 59, 800.00
instead of chain - link and CMU

4- 12 Concrete Swale fencing. 1 LS 23, 000. 00 23, 000. 00

4- 13 20" Water Line .. 61 LF 2, 061. 39 ' 1W
aa. 7g

4- 14 Connection to Ex' ting 20" Water Line 1 EA 65, 000. 00 65, 000. 00

4- 15 20" Butterfly Valve Changed 20" water line from 1 EA 21, 500. 00 21, 500.00

4- 16 6" FH Assembly
bar -wrapped pipe to ductile iron. 

I EA 12, 415. 00 12, 415. 00

4- 17 4" Sewer Line 137 LF 25. 00 3, 425. 00

4- 18 Trench Safety 198 LF 5. 00 990. 00

4- 19 SWPPP 1 LS 5, 000. 00 5, 000. 00

4- 20 Mobilization ( Not to exceed 3% of Base Bid) 1 LS 171, 370. 00 171, 370. 00

C. National Pump
5- 1 National Pump Chain Link Fencing 863 LF 72. 00 62, 136. 00

D. Alternates

Access Tube Spiral Staircase at 87th Street
195, 060. 66

EST Not awarding Alternates 6- 1 and 6- 2. 

6- 3 3rd Street EST: Texas Tech Logos 2 EA 10, 000. 00 20, 000. 00

6- 4
Alternate Interior Coating System for 87th

1 LS ( 87, 000. 00) ( 87, 000. 00) 
Street EST — IW- 03

6- 5
Alternate Interior Coating System for 3rd Street

1 LS ( 87, 000. 00) ( 87, 000. 00) 
EST — IW- 03

Total (Item 1- 1): 5, 859, 00106939403. 45

Total ( Item 2- 1 through 2- 21): 1, 900; 000

Total ( Item 3- 1): 6, 385, 000. 00

Total ( Item 4- 1 through 4-20): 
201574. 79

Total ( Item 5- 1): 62, 136. 00
a.000

Total (Item 6- 1 through 6- 5): 1 Q1;' AAA- 

Total ( Items 1- 1, 2- 1 through 2- 21, 3- 1, 4- 1 through 4- 20, 5- 1, 6- 3, 6-4, and 6- 5): $' 
15, 967, 114. 24



RFVISEP- 1

and he further agrees to commence work on the date specified in the written notice to proceed, and to
substantially complete the work on which he has proposed; as provided in the contract documents. 

Offerors are required, whether or not a payment or performance bond is required, to submit a cashier's
check or certified check issued by a bank satisfactory to the City of Lubbock, or a proposal bond from a reliable
surety company, payable without recourse to the order of the City of Lubbock in an amount not less than five
percent ( 5 %) of the total amount of the proposal submitted as a guarantee that offeror will enter into a contract, 
obtain all required insurance policies, and execute all necessary bonds ( if required) within ten ( 10) days after
notice of award of the contract to him. 



REV[ SED- 1

Enclosed with this proposal is a Cashier' s Check or Certified Check Enclosed with

this proposal is a Cashier' s Check or Certified Check for
Dollars ($ ) or a Proposal Bond in the sum

of Five Percent of Bidder' s Maximum Price Dollars ($ 5'Y ), which it is agreed shall be

collected and retained by the Owner as liquidated damages in the event the proposal is
accepted by the Owner and the undersigned fails to execute the necessary contract
documents, insurance certificates, and the required bond ( if any) with the Owner within
ten ( 10) business days after the date of receipt of written notification of acceptance of said

proposal; otherwise, said check or bond shall be returned to the undersigned upon
demand. 

Offeror understands and agrees that the contract to be executed by Offeror shall be bound
and include all contract documents made available to him for his inspection in accordance with

the Notice to Offerors. 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code

252. 043( g), a competitive sealed proposal that
has been opened may not be changed for the
purpose of correcting an error in the proposal
price. THEREFORE, ANY CORRECTIONS
TO THE PROPOSAL PRICE MUST BE MADE

ON THE PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL FORM

PRIOR TO PROPOSAL OPENING. 

Seal if Offeror is a Corporation) 

A T: Keri Adrian -Williams

A"C 

crdtary

Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following addenda: 

Addenda No. 1._ Date in1261207. i

Addenda No. 2 Date Uy 1,8 1o2z

Addenda No. 3 Date 11 4 2021

Addenda No. 4 Date ; j j,LjQa i

Addenda No. 5 11/ 15/ 2021

Addenda No. 6 11/ 19/ 2021

M/ WBB Firm: 

Date: December 2, 2021

Authorized Signature

Chris Lamon, President of landmark Structures

Management Inc., General Partner

Printed or Typed Name) 

Landmark Structures I. L. P. 

Company
1665 Harmon Road

Address

Fort Worth , Tarrant

City, County
Iexas , 76177

State Zip Code
Telephone: 817 - 439. 8888

Fax: Ru - 230. 2070

Email: estimating0teamlandmark. eom
FEDERAL TAX ID or SOCIAL SECURITY
No. 



LANDMARK STRUCTURES WMGUAW INC. 

The undersigned, being all of the directors of LANDMARK STRUCTURES MANAGEMENT
INC., do hereby take the foitowbrg action by written consent, pursuant to the provisions of
Section 141( f) of the General Corporation taw of the State of Delaware. 

Adoption of the follovWng Resolutions: 

WHEREAS, landmark Structures Management inc. (the ' Company') Is the general
partner of landmark Structures 4 LP; and

WHEREAS, the Company from time to time submits bids and negotiates contracts and
enters into contracts forand on behalf of landmark Structures I, LP; and

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to outhorke Christopher Lemon, President of the
Company, and William O Fields, Jr., Vice President of the Company, to undertake such activities
on behalf of the Company acting as general partner, and on behalf of Landmark Structures 1„ 
LP; and

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to extend authority to each of Christopher tamon and
Willlam O. Flelds, Jr. to take such action without the necessity of the jolnder of the other in
submitting bids and negotiating contracts and entering Into contracts on behalf of Landmark
Structures I, LP; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE iT RESOLVED that Christopher Lemon and William O. Fieids, Jr., 

acting without the joinder of the other, are outhortted as follows. 

a) to submit bids and/or to negotiate contracts and/ or to enter into contracts for
and on behalf of landmark Structures I, I.P. and

b) to execute and deliver such documents and to take such other actions as he

considers necessary or advisable to give effect to this resolution and the transactions provided
for herein. 

BE iT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any bid submitted and/ or any contract negotiated
and/ or anycontract entered brio by Christopher lemon as President of the Company or W111Iam
O. Raids, Jr., Vice President of the Company, as wltnessad by his signature thereto is hereby
recognind as binding upon landmark Strucdures i, LP, a mpany. 

Dated: March 23, 2017

Christ4heher lemon

Susan lemon

iMT60RO. Flolds, Jr. 



As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed 2.0 Million Gallon
Elevated Storage Tank

0 250 500 750 1,000
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

MARSHA SHARP FWY   US 82

25TH ST

Legend

Proposed 2 Million Gallon Storage Tank

City Property

SA
NTE 

FE
 DR

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E

BO
ST

O
N

 A
V

E

2ND PL

4TH ST

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E

3RD ST

SA
NTA

 FE
 DR

A
K

RO
N

 A
V

E

MARSHA SHARP FWY   US 82

2ND ST

3RD ST

N
 IN

D
IA

N
A

 A
V

E

N
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E



As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed 2.0 Million Gallon
Elevated Storage Tank

0 250 500 750 1,000 1,250 1,500 1,750 2,000
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

90TH ST

25TH ST

Legend

Proposed 2 Million Gallon Storage Tank

City Property

A
V

E 
P

A
V

E 
T

82ND ST

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
IN

98TH ST

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
O

U
T

A
V

E 
P

89TH ST

82ND ST
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 A

V
E

92ND ST

A
V

E 
U

87TH ST

84TH ST

A
V

E 
U

CITY LIMITS IN

CITY LIMITS
OUT



Project Scope

This project includes the  construction of two (2) new two (2) million gallon e levated storage tanks (ESTs) within the  next
20 years to meet the  Texas Commission of Environmental Quality  (TCEQ) e levated storage requirements for the  projected
populat ion.  This project includes engineering and construction phase services associated with the  e levated storage
improvements for the  City  of Lubbock.  Once all the  proposed EST's are  in place the  City  will begin to see savings in
e lectrical cost and reduced maintenance cost at  pump stat ion by  allowing the  pump stat ions to run at  optimal ranges.

Project Justi�cation

The TCEQ requires 100 gallons of elevated storage per connection resulting in four (4) Million gallons
on the east pressure plane and six (6) million gallons on the west pressure plane for a total of ten (10)
million gallons across the City. These storage tanks will also provide an opportunity to optimize pump
efficiencies within the City of Lubbock saving on power costs and provide for pressure during power
outages.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement
Growth and Development
Fiscal Discipline

FY 2021-22 $16,700,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2021-O0126
FY 2021-22 $1,500,000 was appropriated by
BCR 2022-07
FY 2023-23 $331,270 was transferred from CIP
92452 by BCR 2023-14

Project Dates Project Location

Construction Bid Date: 12/2021
Constructions Award Dater: 02/2022
Construction Start Date: 02/2022
Construction Completion Date: 07/2024

City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $1,531,270 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $17,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $18,531,270 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92753CIP 92753 Elevated Storage Tanks Phase II Elevated Storage Tanks Phase II
Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Mike KeenumProject Manager: Mike Keenum  - Engineering- Engineering



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund Cash $14,900,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Water/Wastewater Fund Revenue Bonds $3,631,270 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $18,531,270 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
July 23, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92753
Capital Project Name: Elevated Storage Tanks

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff time  $                         23,460
Advertisement                                  324
Contract 16162 with Landmark Structures I, L.P.                      16,428,784
Purchase Orders w/ Guardian Security Solutions for Tank Cameras                             99,928
Amendment 1 to Contract 15977 with FNI                        1,189,470
Change Order No. 1 to Contract 16162                             42,265
Amendment 2 to Contract 15977 with FNI                             95,000

Agenda Item July 23, 2024
Change Order No. 2 to Contract 16162                             64,053

Encumbered/Expended to Date                      17,943,284

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Amendment 1 to Contract 15977 with Freese and Nichols, Inc. for
Construction Phase Services                                      -
Elevated Storage Tank Improvements                           587,986

Remaining Appropriation                                      -

Total Appropriation  $                  18,531,270



 AI# 12696 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 17. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public Works
Contract 18144, with West Texas Paving, Inc., for Unpaved Roads Improvements C.O. Phase 4.

Item Summary
A Request for Proposal (RFP) was issued for this project to improve various dirt roads with asphalt
pavement, curb, and gutter as appropriate. Roads selected for improvements include portions of North
Mulberry and East Erskine.  These improvements are being funded through the Certificate of Obligation
Bonds approved by the City Council in 2021.

In response to RFP 24-18144-TF, the following bids were received and opened on June 20, 2024.
  

Contractor Amount
West Texas Paving, Inc., Wolfforth, Texas $1,394,884.00
Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd., Lubbock, Texas $1,601,295.00
L.A Fuller and Sons Construction, Ltd., Amarillo, Texas $1,650,777.55

The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: 60 Points for Price, 30 Points for Contractor
Qualifications, and 10 Points for Construction Time. The maximum point value is 100 points. After the
proposals were evaluated, the following ranking was obtained.
  

Contractor Total/100 pts
West Texas Paving, Inc., Wolfforth, Texas 97.00
Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd., Lubbock, Texas 88.77
L.A Fuller and Sons Construction, Ltd., Amarillo, Texas 79.45

Staff recommends award of the contract to the highest ranked proposer, West Texas Paving, Inc. of
Wolfforth, Texas, in the amount of $1,394,844.00.

Time for substantial completion is 150 calendar days from notice to proceed. This contract is awarded by
the unit price and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on field conditions.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18144 for $1,394,844.00 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92712, Transportation
Improvements/Unpaved Roads.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager



Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 18144 - West Texas Paving, Inc 
Location Exhibit 
18144 - Project Summary 
92712 Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 





PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL FORM 

UNIT PRICE PROPOSAL CONTRACT 

DATE: _______________________________________ 

PROJECT NUMBER:  RFP 24-18144-TF, Unpaved Roads Improvements C.O. Phase 4 

Proposal of ______________________________________________________ (hereinafter called Offeror) 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Lubbock, Texas (hereinafter called Owner) 

Ladies and Gentlemen:  

The Offeror, in compliance with your Request for Proposals for construction of the referenced project, having 

carefully examined the plans, specifications, instructions to offerors, notice to offerors and all other related contract 

documents and the site of the intended work, and being familiar with all of the conditions surrounding the 

construction of the intended project including the availability of materials and labor, hereby intends to furnish all 

labor, materials, and supplies; and to construct the project in accordance with the plans, specifications and contract 

documents, within the time set forth therein and at the price stated.  The price to cover all expenses incurred in 

performing the work required under the contract documents.  

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION TIME: 

1. Contractors proposed CONSTRUCTION TIME for completion:  

TOTAL CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR DAYS:                              (to Substantial Completion) 

TOTAL CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR DAYS:                              (to Final Completion) 

(not to exceed 150 consecutive calendar days to Substantial Completion / 180 consecutive calendar days to 

Final Completion). 

Offeror hereby agrees to commence the work on the above project on a date to be specified in a written "Notice to 

Proceed" of the Owner and to substantially complete the project within 150 Consecutive Calendar Days with final 

completion within 180 Consecutive Calendar Days as stipulated in the specification and other contract documents. 

Offeror hereby further agrees to pay to Owner as liquidated damages in the sum of $500 for each consecutive calendar 

day after substantial completion and liquidated damages in the sum of $300 for each consecutive calendar day after 

final completion set forth herein above for completion of this project, all as more fully set forth in the General 

Conditions of the Agreement. 

Offeror understands and agrees that this proposal submittal shall be completed and submitted in accordance 

with instruction number 28 of the General Instructions to Offerors.  Offeror understands that the Owner reserves 

the right to reject any or all proposals and to waive any formality in the proposing.  The Offeror agrees that this 

proposal shall be good for a period of sixty (60) calendar days after the scheduled closing time for receiving 

proposals. 

The undersigned Offeror hereby declares that he has visited the site of the work and has carefully examined 

the plans, specifications and contract documents pertaining to the work covered by this proposal, and he further 

agrees to commence work on the date specified in the written notice to proceed, and to substantially complete the 

work on which he has proposed; as provided in the contract documents. 

Offerors are required, whether or not a payment or performance bond is required, to submit a cashier's check 

or certified check issued by a bank satisfactory to the City of Lubbock, or a proposal bond from a reliable surety 

company, payable without recourse to the order of the City of Lubbock in an amount not less than five percent (5%) 

of the total amount of the proposal submitted as a guarantee that offeror will enter into a contract, obtain all required 

insurance policies, and execute all necessary bonds (if required) within ten (10) days after notice of award of the 

contract to him. 

 

 

06-20-2024

West Texas Paving, Inc.

150

180



City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works

RFP 24-18144-TF

Unpaved Roads Improvements C.O. Phase 4

# Items

QTY

+/-
U/M

Unit

Price

Extended

Cost

#1-1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS $39,000.00 39,000.00       

#1-2 SWPPP 1 LS 10,000.00   10,000.00       

#1-3 PREPARING OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 11 STA 6,000.00     66,000.00       

#1-4 ASPHALT REMOVAL 100 SY 25.00          2,500.00         

#1-5 CONCRETE REMOVAL 100 SY 50.00          5,000.00         

#1-6 24" COL TYPE A OR B CURB AND GUTTER CURB 2300 LF 24.00          55,200.00       

#1-7 1' X1 RIBBON CURB 100 LF 24.00          2,400.00         

#1-8 2" HMAC COL TYPE C 3900 SY 42.00          163,800.00     

#1-9 6" CONCRETE VALLEY GUTTER AND FILLET 320 SY 100.00        32,000.00       

#1-10 6" CONCRETE ALLEY RETURNS AND 

DRIVEWAYS

75 SY 100.00        7,500.00         

#1-11 ADA RAMP 6 EA 2,500.00     15,000.00       

#1-12 MANHOLE / VALVE ADJUSTMENTS 3 EA 1,500.00     4,500.00         

#1-13 SIDEWALK 50 SY 85.00          4,250.00         

#1-14 DITCH GRADING 300 LF 55.00          16,500.00       

#1-15 TRAFFIC CONTROL 1 LS 7,500.00     7,500.00         

#2-1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS 58,000.00   58,000.00       

#2-2 SWPPP 1 LS 10,000.00   10,000.00       

#2-3 PREPARING OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 10 STA 6,000.00     60,000.00       

#2-4 ASPHALT REMOVAL 400 SY 25.00          10,000.00       

#2-5 CONCRETE REMOVAL 100 SY 50.00          5,000.00         

#2-6 24" COL TYPE A OR B CURB AND GUTTER CURB 3150 LF 24.00          75,600.00       

#2-7 1' X1 RIBBON CURB 100 LF 24.00          2,400.00         

#2-8 2" HMAC COL TYPE C 5800 SY 42.00          243,600.00     

#2-9 6" CONCRETE VALLEY GUTTER AND FILLET 900 SY 100.00        90,000.00       

#2-10 6" CONCRETE ALLEY RETURNS AND 

DRIVEWAYS

155 SY 100.00        15,500.00       

#2-11 ADA RAMP 16 EA 2,500.00     40,000.00       

#2-12 MANHOLE / VALVE ADJUSTMENTS 4 EA 1,500.00     6,000.00         

#2-13 SIDEWALK 20 SY 85.00          1,700.00         

#2-14 DITCH GRADING 400 LF 55.00          22,000.00       

#2-15 TRAFFIC CONTROL 1 LS 7,500.00     7,500.00         

#3-1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS 28,000.00   28,000.00       

#3-2 SWPPP 1 LS 10,000.00   10,000.00       

#3-3 PREPARING OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 12.5 STA 6,000.00     75,000.00       

#3-4 ASPHALT REMOVAL 24 SY 25.00          600.00            

#3-5 CONCRETE REMOVAL 4 SY 50.00          200.00            

#3-6 24" COL TYPE A OR B CURB AND GUTTER CURB 1031 LF 24.00          24,744.00       

#3-7 2" HMAC COL TYPE C 3445 SY 42.00          144,690.00     

West Texas Paving, Inc. of Wolfforth, TX

North Mulberry Avenue, from Idalou Road to East Erskine

North Mulberry Avenue, from East 1st Street to East Baylor Street

East Erskine Street from Idalou Hwy to North Mulberry Avenue



City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works

RFP 24-18144-TF

Unpaved Roads Improvements C.O. Phase 4

#3-8 6" CONCRETE VALLEY GUTTER AND FILLET 100 SY 100.00        10,000.00       

#3-9 6" CONCRETE ALLEY RETURNS AND 

DRIVEWAYS

57 SY 100.00        5,700.00         

#3-10 ADA RAMP 4 EA 2,500.00     10,000.00       

#3-11 TRAFFIC CONTROL 1 LS 7,500.00     7,500.00         

      431,150.00 

      647,300.00 

      316,434.00 

   1,394,884.00 Total (Items 1-1 through 3-11):

Total (Items 3-1 through 3-11):

Total (Items 1-1 through 1-15):

Total (Items 2-1 through 2-15):



 

 Enclosed with this proposal is a Cashier's Check or Certified Check Enclosed with this 

proposal is a Cashier's Check or Certified Check for ______________________________ Dollars 

($___________) or a Proposal Bond in the sum of ______________________________ Dollars 

($___________), which it is agreed shall be collected and retained by the Owner as liquidated 

damages in the event the proposal is accepted by the Owner and the undersigned fails to execute 

the necessary contract documents, insurance certificates, and the required bond (if any) with the 

Owner within ten (10) business days after the date of receipt of written notification of acceptance 

of said proposal; otherwise, said check or bond shall be returned to the undersigned upon 

demand. 

 Offeror understands and agrees that the contract to be executed by Offeror shall be bound and 

include all contract documents made available to him for his inspection in accordance with the Notice to 

Offerors. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Seal if Offeror is a Corporation) 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________________ 

Secretary 

 

Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following addenda: 

 

Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 

Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 

Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 

Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 

 

 

 

 
 
   
 
 

 

 

M/WBE Firm:  Woman  Black American  Native American 

  Hispanic American  Asian Pacific American  Other (Specify) 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code 

252.043(g), a competitive sealed proposal that 

has been opened may not be changed for the 

purpose of correcting an error in the proposal 

price.  THEREFORE, ANY CORRECTIONS 

TO THE PROPOSAL PRICE MUST BE MADE 

ON THE PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL FORM 

PRIOR TO PROPOSAL OPENING. 

Date:       

 

 

       

Authorized Signature 

 

______________________________________ 

(Printed or Typed Name) 

 ______________________________________ 

Company 

______________________________________ 

Address 

_____________________, ________________ 

City,                     County 

_____________________, ________________ 

State                     Zip Code 

Telephone:  ______ - _____________________ 

Fax:    -      
Email: _____________________________ 

FEDERAL TAX ID or SOCIAL SECURITY 
No. 
 

____________________________________________ 

 
 

5% GAB

06-20-2024

Darrell Jarnagin

West Texas Paving, Inc.

10104 Alcove Avenue

Wolfforth Lubbock

Texas 79382

(806) 833-2882
(806) 833-2884

marshal@wtxpaving.com

75-2028682



E ERSKINE ST

E EMORY ST

E DUKE ST

N
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 S

T

E DARTMOUTH ST

N
 N

IT
E

R
 A

V
E

ID
ALOU R

D U
S 62

/82
  S

H 11
4

N
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 S

T

E BAYLOR ST

E BATES ST

E AUBURN ST

E 1ST ST

E LO
O

P 289

N
 N

IT
E

R
 A

V
E

N
 O

L
IV

E
 A

V
E

N
IT

E
R

 A
V

E

Ü

0 500 1,000250
Feet

Unpaved Roads C.O.
Phase 4

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this
product is for informational purposes and may not have be prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Unpaved Roads Improvements
C.O. Phase 4
CIP: 92712



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 24-18144-TF 

Unpaved Roads Improvements C.O. Phase 4 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on June 2 & June 9, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from June 2 to June 20, 2024. 

11 individuals attended the pre-proposal/pre-bid meeting. 

40 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

33 vendors were notified separately.  

3 vendors submitted proposals. 

 



Project Scope

This project will fund the  paving and improvement of exist ing local residential and collector gravel roads in exist ing
subdivisions where  the  roads were  never improved by  the  developer.  This project will fund the  design and construction of
various inadequate  transportat ion e lements within these areas of the  City  including unimproved roadway surfaces,  unsafe
roadway widths,  drainage improvements,  street light ing,  and ADA compliance.

Project Justi�cation

Areas of the City of Lubbock have existing local residential roadways that are gravel and not improved
with a paved surface. These roadways were part of developments where the roads were never
improved by the developer. These roadways do not meet the City’s Standard Specifications and this
project will help improve mobility and safety in these residential areas.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed: Growth and
Development, Public Safety, Community
Improvement

FY 2020-21 $9,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2020-O0077
FY 2022-23 $59,162 was appropriated by BCR#
2023-9

Project Dates Project Location

Phase 1 construction end date: 01/2023
Phase 2 construction end date: 03/2024
Phase 3 construction start date: 07/2023
Phase 3 construction end date: 09/2024
Phase 4 construction start date: 05/2024
Phase 4 construction end date: 07/2025

City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $9,059,162 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $9,059,162 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund Cash $59,162 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

General Fund CO Bonds $9,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $9,059,162 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92712CIP 92712 Transportation Improvements/ Transportation Improvements/
Unpaved RoadsUnpaved Roads

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Mike KeenumProject Manager: Mike Keenum  - Engineering- Engineering



Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Construction Contract 17342, Lone Star Dirt & Paving 3,704,125$                   
Construction Contract 16919, Lone Star Dirt & Paving 2,118,230                     
Construction Contract 16211, West Texas Paving, Inc., 1,356,535                     
City of Lubbock Staff Time 265,981                        
Professional Service Agreement 16363 with Freese and Nichols 250,000                        
Contract 17967 with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 220,500                        
Contract 17969 with Freese and Nichols, Inc. 204,000                        
Professional Service Agreement 16440 with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 175,000                        
System Capital Improvements, Construction 39,053                          
Amendment 1 to Contract 16363 with Freese and Nichols 30,306                          
Surveying Services by Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. 13,974                          
Contract 17773 with Elm Meadows Addition LLC 8,663                            
ROW Dedication, north half of Erskine from Lublerry to Idalou Road 5,790                            
Advertising Costs 1,186                            
Funding provided by Community Development Grants (1,522,666)                   

Agenda Item July 23, 2024
Construction Contract 18144 with West Texas Paving, Inc. 1,394,884                     

Encumbered/Expended To Date 8,265,561                     

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Unimproved Roadway Construction and Design 793,601                        

Remaining Appropriation 793,601                        

Total Appropriation 9,059,162$                   

City of Lubbock

92712
Transportation Improvements/Unpaved Roads

Capital Project 
Project Cost Detail

July 23, 2024



 AI# 12706 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 18. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute for and on
behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Mutual Termination of Lease Agreement, and all related documents, by
and between the City of Lubbock and Dolgencorp of Texas, Inc., regarding property at 2015 50th
Street-Unit B.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock acquired custodianship of the existing lease between Fifty-U, Ltd., Landlord, and
Dolgencorp of Texas, Dollar General, Tenant, upon purchase of this property in 2019 with the intention
of beginning renovations for the City/County Public Health Facility.

This leased property is 7,700 square feet of the 33,957-square foot facility located at 2015 50th Street,
Unit B, Lubbock, Texas. The remaining 26,257 square feet of the property now houses the City and
County's newly renovated Lubbock Public Health District.

Fiscal Impact
Tenant Lease payments to the City of Lubbock amount to $44,999.40 annually.  Lease forgiveness will
begin 60 days prior to the Lease Termination Agreement date and is valued at $7,499.90. 
Termination Date is defined in the Lease Termination Agreement as being effective two weeks after the
Tenant relocates and opens for business in its new location, but in no case later than February 1, 2025.

Upon approval of the Lease Termination Agreement, the City will not be required to install Dollar
General provided signage for two locations; Parking Lot Pylon Sign and a 23-foot long Store Front Sign.
The Facilities Department estimates that installation of the required infrastructure, (Electrical), and sign
installations, is valued at $25,000.00.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 
Mark Zavicar, Director Facilities Management

Attachments
Resolution of Mutual Lease Termination 
Agreement - Dollar General (s) 
Dollar General Lease Agreement 









































































































 AI# 12673 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 19. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Civic Centers: Consider a resolution approving the recommendation from the Cultural
Arts Grant Review Sub-Committee and the Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors, for the 2024
Cultural Arts Grant Program, using Hotel Occupancy Tax funds collected at the end of Fiscal Year
2022-23.

Item Summary
Civic Lubbock Inc. (CLI) is a 501(c)(3) established in 1956. Their mission is to foster and promote
cultural, educational, and entertainment activities, to include the visual and performing arts, for the
citizens of Lubbock and the surrounding communities. CLI and the City of Lubbock continued their
67-year partnership by entering into a license agreement in July 2023. The agreement defines the
relationship between the City and CLI. The Lubbock City Council is responsible for appointing the CLI
Board of Directors.    

As part of this license agreement, CLI administers an allocation of the Hotel Occupancy Tax that is used
to underwrite local visual and performing arts programs. The Cultural Arts Grant Program (CAGP) is
funded through a portion of the Hotel Occupancy Tax allocation and those funds are used in making
grant awards to local established non-profit organizations, for the encouragement, advancement,
improvement, and application of the arts and the promotion of tourism in the Lubbock community. 
 
The total allocation paid to CLI for the 2024 Program was $578,145.04, which represents 5.92120% of
the hotel/motel tax collected at the end of FY 2022-23. Of that allocation, the following amounts have
been deducted: 10% ($57,814.50) for the Public Art Program and ($11,800.00) for the 2024 Airport Arts
Program. This leaves $508,530.54 available for the 2024 Cultural Arts Grant Program. In addition,
interest of $40,218.64 from prior year and current year funds, unused grant funds of $890, and a
carry-over of $0.62 from 2023 funds provides a total of $549,639.80 available for this annual cycle of
Cultural Arts grants. CLI elected to absorb all administrative expenses incurred for administering this
program. Therefore, the entire amount available for the 2024 CAGP is $549,639.80.
 
A Grant Workshop was held on May 2, 2024, for first-time applicants wishing to apply for a Cultural
Arts Grant. Thirty (30) applications were received by the June 1, 2024 deadline. The CAGP Review
Committee and the CLI Board recommended full or partial funding for all thirty (30) applicants.
 
The CLI Board of Directors approved the grant award recommendations at their June 26, 2024 meeting.
These recommendations are now being presented to the City Council for approval.
 
The CLI Board of Directors are requesting City Council approval of $549,639.00 in grant awards for the
2024 CAGP.
 
All applicants recommended for grant awards are in good standing with the City of Lubbock and CLI.



Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Lisa Thomason, Civic Center Director
Cultural Arts Grant Review Sub-Committee
Civic Lubbock Inc. Board of Directors

Attachments
Resolution CAG 
CLI Board Letter 
CAG Recommendations 
CAG Detail Support 
Funding History 
CLI License Agreement 









                   July 23, 2024

Grant No. Organization Project Requested Recommended
2406-001 The Lubbock Chorale 2024 Handel's "Messiah" Sing-a-Long 4,000$           4,000$               
2406-002 Robert Burns Society of West Texas 10th Anniversary Robert Burns Supper and Celebration 11,750           8,930                 
2406-003 Lubbock Entertainment and Performing Arts Assn Buddy Holly Songwriters Retreat & Concert and "Words of Love" US Launch 25,000           21,412               
2406-004 Lubbock Live Festival Lubbock Live Festival for the Arts 85,000           41,000               
2406-005 Lubbock Christian University Theatre Lubbock Christian University Theatre Season 2024/2025 36,600           32,000               
2406-006 Flatland Productions, Inc. Caldwell Kids Spring Concert 2025 20,000           15,800               
2406-007 Broadway Festivals, Inc. 2025 35th Annual 4th on Broadway Celebration 50,000           40,500               
2406-008 West Texas Watercolor Society 2024/2025 West Texas Watercolor Society Shows 5,000             5,000                 
2406-009 Texas Tech University - International Affairs 24th Annual High and Dry Photography Exhibit 1,000             1,000                 
2406-010 West Texas Watercolor Society Western Federation of Watercolor Societies 50th Annual Exhibit and Meeting 10,000           10,000               
2406-011 Youth Artist Guild Lubbock Youth Artist Guild 2024/2025 Performing Arts Season 15,500           11,780               
2406-012 Lubbock Arts Alliance, Inc. PDA (Public Display of Art) in Lubbock 2025 15,000           11,850               
2406-013 Lubbock Arts Alliance, Inc. Lubbock Cultural District Marketing 2024/2025 7,000             7,000                 
2406-014 Lubbock Arts Alliance, Inc. 47th Annual Lubbock Arts Festival 65,000           57,997               
2406-015 Texas Tech University-School of Art/Landmark Arts Beyond Indochine: Vietnamese and Cambodian Art after Fantasy 4,500             4,500                 
2406-016 Ballet Lubbock Ballet Lubbock 2024/2025 Season 20,000           20,000               
2406-017 Lubbock Symphony Orchestra, Inc. 2024/2025 Masterworks Season 70,000           57,000               
2406-018 Flatlands Dance Theatre Flatlands Dance Theatre 2024/2025 Season 12,000           9,120                 
2406-019 Lubbock Moonlight Musicals, Inc. Moonlight Musicals 2024/2025 Season 50,000           40,000               
2406-020 University Interscholastic League, TTU UIL Summer Theatre/Technical Camps 2025 14,000           14,000               
2406-021 University Interscholastic League, TTU UIL Region 1 4A and 5A One-Act Play Competition 2025 12,000           12,000               
2406-022 University Interscholastic League, TTU 2024 UIL One-Act Play Directors Workshop 6,000             6,000                 
2406-023 Underwood Center for the Arts First Friday Art Trail 32,000           25,600               
2406-024 Underwood Center for the Arts Flatland Film Festival 9,500             9,500                 
2406-025 Underwood Center for the Arts Firehouse Presents: Concerts, Theatrical Events, and Film Screenings 10,600           10,600               
2406-026 Underwood Center for the Arts Hub City Renaissance Faire 6,500             6,500                 
2406-027 Lubbock Community Theatre, Inc. LCT's 2024/2025 Performing Arts Programming 45,000           37,550               
2406-028 West Texas Dancing Raiderettes WTDR Dance Company 2024/2025 Season 10,000          10,000             
2406-029 Ballet Folklorico/Lubbock Centro Aztlan Viva Aztlan Festival 2025 10,000          10,000             
2406-030 Fiestas del Llano, Inc. Fiestas Patrias 2024 9,000            9,000               

 TOTAL 671,950$       549,639$           

Funding for the 2024 Cultural Arts Grant Program
 City of Lubbock Hotel Occupancy Tax allocation 578,145.04$  

  Less 10% allocated for Public Art Acq/Maint per City/CLI Agreement (57,814.50)     
 Less funding for the Airport Arts Program (11,800.00)     

Interest earned on 2019 funds not yet allocated as of 3/31/2024 272.71           
Interest earned on 2021 funds not yet allocated as of 3/31/2024 150.48           
Interest earned on 2022 funds not yet allocated as of 3/31/2024 3,312.07        
Interest earned on 2023 funds as of 3/31/2024 13,231.78      
Interest earned on 2024 funds as of 3/31/2024 23,251.60      
2022 Hotel Live Music Grant funds not used 890.00           

Carry over from 2023 CAG funding 0.62               

   Total available for 2024 CAG Program 549,639.80$  

City of Lubbock/Civic Lubbock, Inc. Cultural Arts Grant Program
2024 Cultural Arts Grant Award Recommendations



 1

Cultural Arts Grant Review Committee 
Grant Recommendations 

2024 Granting Cycle 
 

 
2406-001  The Lubbock Chorale 
   2024 Handel’s “Messiah” Sing-a-Long 
 Amount Requested: $ 4,000 
 Amount Recommended: $ 4,000 
 
The Lubbock Chorale requested $4,000 to assist with costs associated with the presentation of the 2024 
Handel’s “Messiah” Sing-a-Long Holiday Concert. This masterpiece, complete with chorus, soloists and 
orchestra, will be held in the Crickets Theatre at Buddy Holly Hall on December 7, 2024. Audience 
members will have the opportunity to participate in the sing-a-long.  
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has good artistic merit. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan; includes utilizing social media platforms and online 

tourism calendars, which have proven to be effective tools to maximum attendance.  
 Application indicates a good plan for tracking tourism through zip code data provided from 

Select-a-Seat. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($4,000) would be used towards the cost of Professional 

Services (Orchestra/Soloists, Accompanist, and Graphic Designer) and Promotion/Publicity. 
 
 
2406-002  The Robert Burns Society of West Texas 

10th Anniversary Robert Burns Supper and Celebration 
Amount Requested: $ 11,750 
Amount Recommended: $   8,930 

 
The Robert Burns Society of West Texas requested $11,750 to assist with costs associated with the 10th 
Anniversary Robert Burns Supper and Celebration to be held on January 25, 2025 at the Texas Tech 
University International Cultural Center. This traditional celebration of Scottish heritage and culture 
focuses on the literary legacy of Robert Burns, Poet Laureate of Scotland, his songs and poems. In 
addition to performances by local bagpipers and a Celtic harpist, a concert featuring the Celtic Band, “The 
Steel City Rovers” from Hamilton, Ontario, Canada will be performed. 
  
Committee Comments: 

 Project has good artistic and cultural merit.  
 Applicant plans to partner with a local hotel.  
 Application indicates a good marketing plan for generating tourism outside the Lubbock area; 

applicant plans to reach out to other Scottish heritage organizations. 
 In the past, the event has drawn visitors from California, Colorado, New Mexico and Oklahoma 

as well as other cities in Texas. 
 Application indicates a good method for tracking tourism using guest registers and zip code 

tracking through Select-a-Seat. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($8,930) would be used towards the cost of Professional 

Services (Musician Fees and Sound System), Facilities, Promotion/Publicity, and/or Postage. 
 
 



 2

2406-003  Lubbock Entertainment and Performing Arts Assn.  
Buddy Holly Songwriters Retreat/Concert & “Words of Love” US Launch  
Amount Requested: $ 25,000 
Amount Recommended: $ 21,412 

 
The Lubbock Entertainment and Performing Arts Association (LEPAA) requested $25,000 to assist with 
costs associated with the fourth annual Buddy Holly Songwriters Retreat/Concert and the US Launch of 
“Words of Love, a book covering Buddy Holly’s life, music and enduring legacy. The book launch will 
take place on September 30, 2024. The Songwriters Retreat and Concert will be held October 1-4, 2024. 
Songwriters from around the world are expected to participate.  The songwriters will be paired up in small 
groups of three to write original songs. The mentor will be 2016 Nashville Songwriters Hall of Famer, 
Beth Nielsen Chapman. The Concert, which will include the best of the best songs composed over the 
week, will be performed at a ticketed event in the Crickets Theatre at Buddy Holly Hall. A unique feature 
this year will include Ms. Chapman and her songwriting group conducting a mini-master class at a LISD 
high school with students bussed in from other schools as well as a master class in songwriting at TTU’s 
School of Music. 
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has good artistic merit. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan for promoting the project outside the Lubbock area.  
 Application indicates a consistent number of hotel rooms utilized for the first three Songwriter 

Retreats/Showcases.  
 Applicant plans to partner with a local hotel. 
 Application indicates a good plan to market the project on local, national and international media 

platforms; participating songwriters will be required to make posts on their social media pages. 
 Application indicates corporate and other grant support. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($ 21,412) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Mentor Fee, Videography, Photography, Production costs), and/or Rental 
(Music Equipment). 

 
 
2406-004  Lubbock Live Festival    

Lubbock Live Festival for the Arts 
Amount Requested: $ 85,000 
Amount Recommended: $ 41,000  

 
Lubbock Live Festival requested $85,000 to assist with musician fees associated with the Fifth Annual 
Lubbock Live Festival for the Arts to be held in August of 2025 in the Lubbock Arts District. The 
purpose of the festival is to showcase new and emerging local artists and to give back to the local arts 
community.  It is anticipated there will be 40 local artists from a variety of disciplines including music, 
dance, theater, and visual arts with the goal in mind of supporting the arts and helping all who attend 
know more about what Lubbock has to offer artistically. Music genres will include Rock, Rap, Country, 
Soul, R&B, Americana, Indie and Jazz along with various dance styles ranging from folklorico to fire 
spinners and traditional ballet.  
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic merit. 
 The organization is hoping to increase attendance by bringing in multiple bigger-named artists. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan including TV/Radio, calendar listings on various 

tourism websites and, and targeted social media ads. 



 3

 Application indicates a good plan to track tourism and room nights generated. 
 Application indicates that the organization has applied for other foundation grant funds. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($41,000) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Musician Fees). 
 

 
2406-005  Lubbock Christian University Theatre  

Lubbock Christian University Theatre Season 2024/2025 
Amount Requested: $ 36,600 
Amount Recommended: $ 32,000 

 
The Lubbock Christian University Theatre requested $36,600 to assist with costume rental, puppet rentals 
and orchestra musician fees for their 2024/2025 season of musical productions. LCU Theatre will be 
presenting two full-scale productions. The production of Little Shop of Horrors by Ashman and Menken 
will be presented in October of 2024 with a student cast of 15, 8 orchestra musicians and the rental of 
large puppets. In August of 2025, a production of My Fair Lady will be presented and include a student 
cast of 50+ and 22 orchestra musicians.  
   
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic and educational merit.  
 Application indicates a good marketing plan outside the region to include postings on tourism 

websites, social media posts, postcard mail outs to the theatre mailing list and area theatre 
teachers.  

 Application indicates a good plan to track tourism. 
 Applicant plans to partner with a local hotel. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($32,000) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Orchestra Musicians) and/or Rentals (Costumes and Puppets). 
 
2406-006 Flatland Productions, Inc.  

Caldwell Kids Spring Concert 2025 
Amount Requested: $ 20,000 

 Amount Recommended: $ 15,800 
 

Flatland Productions requested $20,000 to assist with costs associated with the presentation of the 
Caldwell Kids Spring Concert to be held on three dates between March 1 and July 1, 2025. The two-hour 
and 30-minute production will feature individual singers and group performances from an ensemble cast 
of 40-50 students ranging in age from 4-18 years old. The students will have the opportunity to work with 
professional musicians who will comprise the core rhythm section for the concerts. Guest artists ranging 
from professional performers to professional technical experts in the fields of lighting design and sound 
engineering will be utilized and perform with the students.  
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic and educational merit. 
 Applicant has a good plan for marketing using a variety of media platforms. 
 Applicant plans to partner with a local hotel. 
 Applicant plans to use ticket sales data, on-site surveys and communication with hotels to track 

tourism. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($15,800) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Musicians, Guest Artists, Production Staff, and Stage Crew) and/or 
Facility Rental. 



 4

2406-007 Broadway Festivals, Inc.  
2025 35th Annual 4th on Broadway Celebration 

 Amount Requested:   $ 50,000 
 Amount Recommended: $ 40,500 

 
Broadway Festivals requested $50,000 to assist with costs associated with the 35th Annual 4th on 
Broadway Celebration to be held on July 2-4, 2025. The free-to-the-public activities in MacKenzie Park 
on July 4th will include 300 singers and musicians performing on six different stages, a massive kid’s 
area, an evening concert and other family friendly activities. 
 
Committee Comments: 

 The music components of the project reflect strong artistic merit. 
 The application indicates that the concerts on July 2 and 3 will be funded and presented by other 

promoters; this is an added benefit for the activities on the 4th as it will encourage visitors to 
attend all three days.  

 Application indicates a good plan to track tourism.  
 Applicant plans to block rooms at a local hotel with the assistance of Visit Lubbock. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan to target local, regional and potential national 

attendees. 
 Application indicates strong in-kind and corporate support. 
 Cultural Arts Grant Funds recommended ($40,500) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Music Production Contract and Musicians performing in MacKenzie 
Park). 

 
 
2406-008   West Texas Watercolor Society  

2024/2025 West Texas Watercolor Society Shows 
Amount Requested: $ 5,000 
Amount Recommended: $ 5,000 

 
The West Texas Watercolor Society requested $5,000 to assist with costs associated with the presentation 
of its 2024 Fall Small Works Show, 2024 Winter Signature Show and 2025 Summer Show. The Fall 
Show will be held October 1-29, 2024 at the Broadway Contemporary Fine Art Gallery. The small works 
show will feature works as small as a postage stamp to no larger than a 10” x 10” painting. The Winter 
Signature Show will be held December 1, 2024-January 14, 2025 at the Buddy Holly Center and feature 
water media art produced by artists of Texas and the U.S. The 2025 Summer Show will be held May 1-
June 30, 2025 at the Lubbock Municipal Garden and Arts Center and will have two categories: 
Novice/Intermediate and Advanced/Professional. All scheduled shows will be on exhibit during the First 
Friday Art Trail during those months.  
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic merit. 
 Applicant has a good marketing plan in place; plans to promote the show through various online 

tourism websites and calendars, social media and venue websites. 
 Applicant has a good plan in place for tracking tourism and room nights generated. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($5,000) would be used towards the cost of Professional 

Services (Jurors/Café Call), Facility Rental, Promotion/Publicity and Other (Artist Awards). 
 
 
 



 5

2406-009   Office of International Affairs, TTU  
24th Annual High and Dry Photography Exhibit 
Amount Requested: $ 1,000 
Amount Recommended: $ 1,000 

 
The Office of International Affairs at Texas Tech University requested $1,000 to support the 24th Annual 
High and Dry Photography Exhibit to be on display in the International Cultural Center Galleries from 
December 6, 2024-February 28, 2025. Approximately 85 photographers will submit over 350 
photographs from which 70 images will be selected for the exhibition. A key element in attracting 
participation is the involvement of esteemed jurors from the country’s photography community. 
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic merit. 
 Having a nationally known juror from outside the Lubbock area creates the potential to generate 

more entries and even more high quality entries.  
 Applicant has a good plan in place for marketing outside the Lubbock area. Event calendar 

listings, tourism publications, social media and radio advertising will be used to promote the 
exhibition. 

 Applicant plans to include a link to the Visit Lubbock website on all promotional materials, 
which will provide information on local hotels. 

 Applicant has a good plan in place for tracking tourism and room nights generated. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($1,000) would be used towards the cost of Professional 

Services (Juror Honorarium), Supplies/Materials (Exhibit Supplies), Promotion/Publicity, and 
Postage. 

 
2406-010  West Texas Watercolor Society 

Western Federation of Watercolor Societies 50th Annual Exhibit/Meeting 
Amount Requested: $ 10,000 
Amount Recommended: $ 10,000 
 

The West Texas Watercolor Society requested $10,000 to assist with costs associated with hosting the 
Western Federation of Watercolor Societies 50th Annual Exhibit and Meeting to be held on various dates 
between February 1 and May 4, 2025 at the Museum of Texas Tech. The exhibition itself will be on 
display for three months. A workshop will be conducted by Illinois watercolor artist Ken Call on April 9-
11, 2025. Mr. Call will also serve as juror for the show. The show is expected to draw up to 1,000 entries 
from 300-500 artists. Mr. Call will select approximately 100 paintings from those entries to hang in the 
Museum for the exhibition. The West Texas Watercolor Society last hosted this event in 2015. 
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic and educational merit. 
 Application indicates the project will draw delegates, artists and family members from the 10 

member societies located in Dallas, San Diego, Oregon, Idaho, Arizona, New Mexico, Utah, 
Colorado and West Texas. 

 Applicant plans to block rooms at a local hotel. 
 Applicant has a good plan in place to track tourism and room nights. 
 Applicant has a good marketing plan in place; plans to promote the event through various online 

watercolor society websites, online calendars and social media.  
 Application indicates strong grant support from other foundations. 
 Cultural Art Grant Funds recommended ($10,000) would be used toward the cost of Professional 

Services (Juror/Judge), Facility Rental, and Other (Artist Awards). 



 6

2406-011  Youth Artist Guild Lubbock 
   2024/2025 Performing Arts Season 
 Amount Requested: $ 15,500 
 Amount Recommended: $ 11,780 
 
The Youth Artists Guild of Lubbock requested $15,500 to assist in funding performances, classes, camps 
and workshops for their 2024/2025 season. These activities will take place at the Hollingsworth Hall 
Cultural Center on Boston Ave. The season will include the production of four student-produced plays, 
one musical production, fall and spring homeschool performing arts classes, performing arts summer 
camps, student playwriting program, student improve troupe and community workshops.  The activities 
provide students with the opportunity to learn theatre, dance and music history, traditions, styles and skills 
while participating in expressing, creating, and performing pieces that represent multiple cultures and art 
mediums.   
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic and educational merit. 
 Application indicated strong growth in attendance from 2022 to 2023. 
 Applicant has a good marketing plan in place; plans to promote classes and performances on 

various online tourism calendars, local online calendars, and on various social media platforms. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($11,780) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Directors/Choreographers/Instructors), Rentals (Scripts/Performance 
Rights/Royalties), Supplies/Materials (Costumes/Set building materials), and/or Promotion and 
Publicity. 

 
 
2406-012  Lubbock Arts Alliance, Inc. 
   PDA (Public Display of Art) in Lubbock 2025 
 Amount Requested: $ 15,000 
 Amount Recommended: $ 11,850     
 
The Lubbock Arts Alliance requested $15,000 to assist with artist fees associated with the “PDA (Public 
Display of Art) in Lubbock” initiative. This project places large-scale artworks at major intersections 
throughout Lubbock for a period of two years. After two years, new pieces of art are selected to replace 
the current ones thus insuring that there is always something new to view at various intersections. This 
project is a collaboration of Texas Department of Transportation, the Tornado Industrial/Arts, and the 
Lubbock Arts Alliance. The Featured Artist selected is Tornado Industrial/Arts. They will be creating two 
sculptures called “Butterflies.” Each sculpture will measure 8’x8’ and stand about 12’ tall. This project 
helps enhance roadsides and community gateways and attracts visitors to the area.  
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic merit. 
 Application shows good collaboration/support from other organizations in the community. 
 Applicant plans to track visitors that view each piece of public art using open rates on weekly e-

blasts, interactions on social media and online surveys. 
 There is a good marketing plan in place to promote the artwork to visitors and potential visitors 

through television coverage, newspaper articles, social media campaigns, and press releases to 
regional/statewide media. 

 Application indicates strong foundation grant support. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($11,850) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Artist Professional Fee). 



 7

2406-013   Lubbock Arts Alliance  
2024/2025 Cultural District Marketing  
Amount Requested: $ 7,000 
Amount Recommended: $ 7,000   

 
The Lubbock Arts Alliance requested $7,000 to continue promotion of Lubbock’s Cultural District and 
the activities that take place within the District thereby attracting tourism, stimulating the economy and 
facilitating growth of the cultural sector. Social media will continue with posts and paid ads. They plan to 
add a SMS text feature to the advertising campaign with information and images of events and venues in 
the Cultural District.  To further promote the website and encourage sigh-ups for the weekly newsletters, 
the Arts Alliance plans to continue its 4”x4” Collector Card series, featuring different venues and artwork 
found in the District. These marketing efforts inform residents and visitors of the activities and events in 
the District to help drive attendance, generate ticket sales, and increase engagement with the arts. 
   
Committee Comments: 

 Project promotes the arts, humanities and cultural tourism.  
 Application indicates new initiatives to further promote and market cultural and arts activities 

held in the Cultural District. 
 Application indicates strong foundation grant support. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($7,000) would be used towards the cost of Professional 

Services (Contract Labor/Photography/Graphic Design/Technical upgrades) and 
Promotion/Publicity. 
 

2406-014  Lubbock Arts Alliance, Inc. 
   47th Annual Lubbock Arts Festival 
 Amount Requested: $ 65,000 
 Amount Recommended: $ 57,997 
 
The Lubbock Arts Alliance requested $65,000 to support the 47th Annual Lubbock Arts Festival to be 
held on April 12-13, 2025 at the Lubbock Memorial Civic Center. The theme for the 2025 Arts Festival 
will be “Upcycle,” underscoring their commitment to sustainability in the arts. This event will merge art 
and environmental awareness and showcase artists who utilize recycled, repurposed and reused materials. 
Highlights include “Paint Chip Art” by Jennifer Lashbrook who meticulously cuts and arranges paper 
paint swatches into collage-style images of landscapes, cityscapes portraits and famous artworks and 
sandpainting by Ben Martinez of Oaxaca, Mexico who will showcase the ancient form of sandpainting 
where colored sands and powdered pigments are poured onto a surface to create intricate and ephemeral 
images. A performance of a contemporary Pow-Wow by Great Promise for American Indians will blend 
entertainment and education with vibrant traditions and costumes, stories and history through song.  Other 
components include visual artists from around the nation, demonstrating artists, a Juried Gallery with 
merit awards, a Children’s Art Area, Young Artist and Writers Competitions, and performance stages.   
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic merit. 
 Applicant continues to bring in innovative and unique exhibits to stimulate interest in the arts and 

the Festival each year. 
 Applicant plans to partner with a local hotel. 
 Application indicates a good plan to track tourism and room nights generated. 
 Application indicates strong corporate and other grant/foundation support. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($57,997) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Artists/Performers), Promotion/Publicity and/or Postage 



 8

 
2406-015  TTU School of Art/Landmark Arts 

Beyond Indochine: Vietnamese and Cambodian Art after Fantasy 
Amount Requested: $ 4,500 
Amount Recommended: $ 4,500 
 

The Texas Tech School of Art/Landmark Arts requested $4,500 to support the presentation of an art 
exhibition of contemporary Vietnamese and Cambodian art by artists from Texas and the American 
Southwest in April of 2025.  The exhibition will coincide with the TTU Comparative Literature 
Symposium whose topic will be “50 Years after the Fall of Saigon: French Colonialism, American 
Interventionism and Critical Refugees Studies.” It will also coincide with the TTU Vietnam Center’s 
annual Vietnam Symposium.  
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic merit. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan using digital campaigns on Glasstire.com, Southwest 

Contemporary online arts magazines, television/radio ads, and social media.  They also plan to 
collaborate with the two symposium organizers to cross promote the art exhibition.  

 Applicant has a good plan in place for tracking tourism and room nights generated. 
 Application indicates other foundation funding. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($4,500) would be used towards the cost of Professional 

Services (Artist Fees) and Promotion/Publicity. 
 
 
2406-016  Ballet Lubbock  

2024/2025 Season 
Amount Requested:  $ 20,000 
Amount Recommended:  $ 20,000  

 
Ballet Lubbock requested $20,000 to assist with marketing their 2025/2025 Season. The season includes 
The Nutcracker to be held December 12-15, 2024 and their spring production of Sleeping Beauty to be 
held April 11-12, 2025 at the Buddy Holly Hall. In addition to the regular performances of The 
Nutcracker, a scaled-down version will be presented to area fourth-graders and a fully staged free 
outreach performance will be presented. The production of Sleeping Beauty will be using costumes, 
backdrops, and set pieces owned by Charlotte Ballet and Ballet Austin and originally built by The Royal 
Ballet in England in the 1970’s.  
   
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic and educational merit. 
 Application indicates a strong marketing plan and includes television, direct mail, print, local and 

national online event calendars and an extensive digital marketing campaign.  
 Applicant plans to partner with a local hotel. 
 Application indicates other grant/foundation support as well as corporate support. 
 Applicant has a good plan in place to track tourism. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($20,000) would be used towards the cost of 

Promotion/Publicity 
 
 
 
 



 9

2406-017  Lubbock Symphony Orchestra 
2024/2025 Masterworks Season 
Amount Requested: $ 70,000 
Amount Recommended: $ 57,000 

 
The Lubbock Symphony Orchestra requested $70,000 to assist with musician fees and guest artist fees 
associated with the presentation of the 2024/2025 Season. The season will consist of five Masterworks 
Concerts: “Beethoven Strikes Again” on September 19, 2024, “A Night of Brahms” on November 16, 
2024, “Highlights of Rigoletto” on January 18, 2025, “Tchaikovsky First Piano Concerts” on March 9, 
2025 and finally, a performance of “Carmina Burana” on April 5, 2025 featuring the Lubbock Chorale.  
This season the LSO plans to collaborate with and hire local professional singer/songwriters to perform 
one hour prior to a Masterworks Concert two-four times during the season. These performances would be 
held in the pre-function/lobby area of Buddy Holly Hall with a goal of providing diversity in live music 
genres. 
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic merit. 
 Application indicates strong corporate and foundation grant support. 
 Application indicates a good marketing strategy to reach potential audiences outside our region. 
 Application indicates a plan to track tourism. 
 Applicant plans to partner with three local hotels. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($57,000) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Guest Artist Fees/Musician Fees) 
 
 
2406-018  Flatlands Dance Theatre 

Flatland Dance Theatre 2024/2025 Season 
Amount Requested: $ 12,000 
Amount Recommended: $   9,120 

 
Flatlands Dance Theatre requested $12,000 to assist with costs associated with the Flatlands Dance 
Theatre’s 2024/2025 Season.  The season will include two original evening-length world-premiere 
productions, the first being “Lubbock Lights” on October 25-26, 2024. The second production will be 
“Blue” scheduled for March 28-29, 2025 and will feature live performances from the TTU School of 
Music faculty and many other local dancers, artists and writers. Both productions will be held at the 
Firehouse Theatre at LHUCA.  The popular annual Young Dancer’s Workshop will be held August 4-8, 
2025.  
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic and educational merit. 
 Application indicates a marketing plan utilizing social media and other media platforms, 

including television and online tourism calendars. 
 Application indicates a plan for tracking out of town attendees. 
 Application indicates strong foundation grant support. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($9,120) would be used towards the cost of Facility 

Rental and/or Promotion/Publicity 
 
 
 
 



 10

 
2406-019   Lubbock Moonlight Musicals, Inc.  

Moonlight Musicals 2024/2025 Season  
Amount Requested: $ 50,000 
Amount Recommended: $ 40,000 

 
Lubbock Moonlight Musicals requested $50,000 to assist with the cost of orchestra musician fees, 
supplies/materials and performance rights for the presentation of its 2024/2025 Season. The season 
productions, which include Academy shows and Main Stage productions, of Broadway Jr. Revue, Disney 
Revue, Peter Pan, Oliver! Jr., Disney’s Aladdin, Jr., Disney’s Aristocrats, Jr, Big Fish, and Disney’s Lion 
King, Jr. The 26 performances will be held at Moonlight Musical Amphitheatre.  
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic and educational merit. 
 Application indicates strong corporate and other grant support. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan in place to reach potential audiences outside the 

Lubbock area. 
 Application indicates a good plan for tracking tourism. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($40,000) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Orchestra Members) and/or Other Rentals (Performance Rights). 
 
 
2406-020  University Interscholastic League – TTU  

UIL Summer Theatre/Technical Camps 2025 
Amount Requested: $ 14,000 
Amount Recommended: $ 14,000  

 
The University Interscholastic League-TTU requested $14,000 to assist with costs associated with the 
UIL Summer Theatre/Technical Camps scheduled for July 10-20, 2025. The focus of the camps will be 
on techniques in acting and technical theatre. The participants will produce eight plays with the final 
performances being open to public. Students attending the camps learn all aspects of producing a play, 
including building sets, designing and running lights, creating costumes and publicity package design.  
Students from across Texas attend the camps. The performances will be held in the newly designed and 
renovated Maedgen Theatre, the Black Box Theatre as well as other areas within the theatre complex. 
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic and educational merit. 
 Application indicates that the final performances by the students should bring in family members 

from around the state; good potential for tourism and overnight stays. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan to generate tourism/overnight stays; the camps will 

be marketed to one-act play theater directors around the state. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($14,000) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Camp Directors/Instructors) and Supplies/Materials (Costume/Set 
Materials) 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 11

 
2406-021   University Interscholastic League – TTU  

Texas Tech UIL Region 1 4A and 5A One-Act Play Contest 2025 
Amount Requested: $ 12,000 
Amount Recommended: $ 12,000  

 
The University Interscholastic League-TTU requested $12,000 to assist with costs associated with hosting 
the UIL Region 1 4A and 5A One-Act Play Competitions to be held April 22-24, 2025.  The competition 
will be held at the Allen Theatre and targets student thespians from 500 Texas 4A and 5A school districts. 
UIL expects 1,000 visitors and 350 competitors to come to Lubbock for the competition. The Region 1 
area encompasses areas ranging from the northern Panhandle, east to the DFW area, south to Lampasas, 
and west to El Paso.   
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic and educational merit. 
 Application indicates a good plan for tracking tourism and room nights. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan in place to promote the project to school districts 

across Texas. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($12,000) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Judges/Contest Manager/Stage Manager/Timers) and Facility Rental 
 
 
2406-022   University Interscholastic League – TTU  

2024 UIL One-Act Play Director’s Workshop 
Amount Requested: $ 6,000 
Amount Recommended: $ 6,000 

 
The University Interscholastic League requested $6,000 to assist with costs associated with the UIL One-
Act Play Director’s Workshop that will be held in Lubbock on November 1-2, 2024.  The workshop is 
designed for theatre educators. Training will be provided on such topics as selecting scripts, casting parts, 
designing sets/costumes and marketing/advertising.  
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has good artistic and educational merit. 
 Application indicates good potential for generating room nights.   
 Applicant plans to partner with a local hotel. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan to promote the workshop to over 1,200 directors 

throughout Texas; direct mail will be sent to private schools in the region. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($6,000) would be used towards the cost of Professional 

Services (Presenters), Facility Rental and Supplies/Materials 
 
 
2406-023  Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts 
   First Friday Art Trail 
 Amount Requested:  $ 32,000 
 Amount Recommended: $ 25,600 
 
The Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts (LHUCA) requested $32,000 to assist in funding 
marketing, artist and musician fees, security, wayfinding, and trolley service for the First Friday Art Trail. 
The event will be held monthly from September 2024 through August of 2025 and is a free self-guided art 



 12

trail through the Cultural District. The Art Trail presents a family-friendly evening of arts education in 
visual art, music, and dance at over 20 different venues. 
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic merit. 
 Project creates great exposure for participating venues and artists. 
 Application indicates a good plan for tracking tourism. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan for advertising outside the region and will include, in 

conjunction with other media platforms, advertising in “Southwest Contemporary” and “Arts + 
Culture” magazines, which serve multiple states. 

 Application indicates strong corporate as well as state and local foundation grant support. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($25,600) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Artist/Musician Fees/Security), Supplies/Materials, and/or Promotion/ 
Publicity 

 
 
2406-024   Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts  

Flatland Film Festival 
Amount Requested: $ 9,500 
Amount Recommended: $ 9,500   

 
The Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts (LHUCA) requested $9,500 to fund marketing, 
screening fees, filmmaker stipends and graphic design work associated with the Flatland Film Festival, 
The Festival will be held September 26-28, 2024 at in the Firehouse Theatre at LHUCA. The Festival will 
showcase Texas’ dynamic filmmaking culture by spotlighting regional filmmakers and bringing a greater 
understanding of the filmmaking arts to the South Plains. The centerpiece of the Festival, the independent 
Shorts Competition by regional, national and international filmmakers, will screen in three screening 
blocks throughout the Festival. Feature length films will also be screened during the festival. The 2024 
films will feature Talk Backs between the filmmaker/producer and audience members. 
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic merit. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan for promoting the festival outside the region 

including neighboring states. 
 Application indicates good corporate funding support. 
 Application indicates a good strategy for tracking tourism and room nights generated. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($9,500) would be used towards the cost of Professional 

Services (Screening Fees/Filmmakers Honorarium/Video Production, Graphic Designer) and/or 
Promotion and Publicity 

 
 
2406-025  Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts 

Firehouse Presents: Concerts, Theatrical Events, Film Screenings 
Amount Requested: $ 10,600 
Amount Recommended: $ 10,600 

 
The Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts (LHUCA) requested $10,600 to support the 
Firehouse Presents program. The season is expanding from bi-monthly events to monthly events. The 
programming will bring live concerts, theatrical performances and movie screenings to the community at 
a free or accessible ticket price. The highlight of the fall series will be the screening of “Metropolis 



 13

Elektro” paired with a live stage performance of originally scored music by Scott and Amy Farris. The 
highlight of the spring series will feature the 7th Annual West Texas Battle of the Bands competition that 
will celebrate emerging local bands. Other activities during the year will include piano concerts with TTU 
School of Music, dance performances by the TTU School of Theatre and Dance, choir concerts with the 
West Texas Children’s Choir, and theatrical performances produced by the Wallace Theatre. LHUCA 
plans to partner with the BurkTech Players, an ensemble of artists from TTU’s Burkhart Center for 
Autism Education and Research, to showcase their upcoming productions. Additionally LHUCA will 
secure bands from across Texas from the Texas Commission on the Arts Touring Roster for Firehouse 
Presents concerts. 
   
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic merit. 
 The committee was pleased to see that the series is expanding to provide more performances and 

activities throughout the year. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan to target regional, statewide and neighboring states 

using a variety of media platforms. 
 Application indicates a good plan in place for tracking tourism. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($10,600) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Performer Fees/ Film Screening Fees/ AV Technician and Graphic 
Design), Supplies/Materials (Backline Instruments) and Promotion/Publicity. 

 
 
2406-026  Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts 

Hub City Renaissance Faire 
Amount Requested: $ 6,500 
Amount Recommended: $ 6,500 

 
The Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts (LHUCA) requested $6,500 to fund costs associated 
with the second annual Hub City Renaissance Faire scheduled for October 19, 2024 at various locations 
on the LHUCA campus and at CASP. The Faire will include theatrical performances from local directors 
and actors, musical acts by local performers as well as regional vendors and artisans. The Faire will also 
feature interactive demonstrations by the LHUCA Clay Studio and CASP Metal and Print Labs artists. 
The inaugural event in 2023 drew approximately 3,600 attendees with its family friendly programming. 
   
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong cultural and artistic merit. 
 Application indicates a good marketing plan to target regional, statewide and neighboring states 

using a variety of media platforms. 
 Application indicates collaboration with several other organizations such as Lubbock-Con 

Ventures, TTU School of Music and TTU Medieval Renaissance Studies Center and others.  
 Application indicates a good plan in place for tracking tourism. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($6,500) would be used towards the cost of Professional 

Services (Performer Fees/Technician Fees/Security), Supplies and Materials (Art and Stage 
supplies) and Promotion/Publicity. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 14

 
2406-027  Lubbock Community Theatre, Inc. 
   LCT’s 2024/2025 Performing Arts Programming  
 Amount Requested:   $ 45,000 
 Amount Recommended: $ 37,550 
 
The Lubbock Community Theatre (LCT) requested $45,000 to assist with marketing, production costs 
and artist fees associated with their 2024/2025 Main Season, Tumbleweed Festival, and STAGES arts 
programming.  Productions for the Main Season will include performances of You Can’t Take it With 
You, Company, Chicken and Biscuits, Murder on the Orient Express, Heathers, and a Holiday Variety 
Show. The STAGES program, a full education program with student led productions, will present The 
Hobbit, Alice in Wonderland, Annie, Jr., 10 Ways to Survive a Zombie Apocalypse and Goosebumps the 
Musical. The Tumbleweed Festival will highlight original works from all over Texas. 
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic and educational merit. 
 Application indicates strong grant/foundation and corporate support. 
 Applicant indicates a good marketing plan to include online calendar listings of tourism websites, 

digital advertising and aired commercials, promotional events and podcasts. 
 Applicant has a good plan in place to track tourism. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($37,550) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Directors/Performers/Costume Designers/Sound and Light Technicians), 
Rentals (other than facilities), Supplies/Materials (Costumes/Props/Set Materials) and/or 
Promotion/Publicity. 
 

 
2406-028  West Texas Dancing Raiderettes 
   WTDR Dance Company’s 2024/2025 Season  
 Amount Requested:   $ 10,000 
 Amount Recommended: $ 10,000 
 
The West Texas Dancing Raiderettes (WTDR) requested $10,000 to assist with costs associated with the 
WTDR Dance Company’s 2024/2025 Season. WTDR offers dance classes and workshops, taught by 
professional instructors, for minority and low-income children aged 5-18 living in the West Texas region. 
Various dance styles, such as ballet, jazz, hip-hop and contemporary are included in the program.  
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong artistic and educational merit. 
 Applicant has a good plan in place to track tourism. 
 Application indicates other grant support.  
 Applicant plans to partner with a local hotel. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($10,000) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Instructors), Facilities, Supplies/Materials (Costumes/Props) and 
Promotion/Publicity. 
 

 
 
 
 



 15

2406-029 Lubbock Centro Aztlan/Ballet Folklorico Aztlan 
Viva Aztlan Festival 2025 
Amount Requested: $ 10,000 

 Amount Recommended: $ 10,000  
 
Lubbock Centro Aztlan requested $10,000 to produce the Viva Aztlan Festival that will be held March 
14-15, 2025 at the Lubbock Memorial Civic Center. The Festival will consist of Mexican folklore dance 
groups of all ages competing and participating in workshops taught by Masters of their field. Folklorico 
groups are invited from all over the nation to compete and display their artistry and traditions of Mexico 
through dance and music on a professional stage.  An additional attraction in 2025 will be a concert 
featuring Ballet Folklorico de Alvaro Munoz from Abilene along with Mariachi Azteca de Americas from 
San Antonio to headline the concert.  The Mariachi group will also provide individual Master Classes 
with each Mariachi that registers. Past festivals have attracted folklorico and mariachi groups from cities 
such as Chicago, IL, Denver and Pueblo, CO, Guymon, OK as well as cities across Texas.  
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong cultural, artistic and educational merit. 
 Applicant has a good marketing plan for advertising outside the area. Tourism websites as well 

as social media and websites that specifically cater to Folklorico and Mariachi groups will be 
utilized to promote the Festival.  

 Applicant has a good plan in place to track tourism. 
 Applicant plans to partner with a local hotel. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($10,000) would be used towards the cost of 

Professional Services (Folklorico Master Judges/Performer Fees) and Promotion/Publicity. 
 
 
2306-030  Fiestas del Llano, Inc. 
   Fiestas Patrias 2024 
 Amount Requested: $ 9,000 
 Amount Recommended: $ 9,000 
 
Fiestas del Llano requested $9,000 to assist with costs associated with Fiestas Patrias 2024 to be held 
September 14, 2024 at Buddy Holly Park. The cultural celebration will feature various bands and 
folklorico groups performing during the day and the traditional Grito de Dolores ceremony that evening. 
One of the goals of Fiestas Patrias is to bring awareness to the rich heritage and traditions of music, dance 
and art of the Mexican-Mestizo culture. 
 
Committee Comments: 

 Project has strong cultural and artistic components that include music and dance. 
 Application indicates a good plan to market the project outside the region using a variety of 

media platforms, to include social media, television, print and the Visit Lubbock online calendar.  
 Application indicates a plan to track tourism. 
 Cultural Arts Grant funds recommended ($9,000) would be used towards the cost of Professional 

Services (Performers/Stage/Sound) and Promotion/Publicity 



Organization Project 2019 2020 * 2021 2022 2023 TOTAL
Ballet Lubbock The Nutcracker 8,000          6,695          10,000        20,000        44,695             

Spring Performance 7,350          4,826          5,300          7,500          24,976             
Touring Dance Company Performances 3,450          3,700          -                  7,150               

Broadway Festivals, Inc. 4th on Broadway Celebration 36,000        28,000        32,860        33,000        129,860           
Charles Adams Studio Project Sight and Sounds First Friday Art Trail @ CASP 4,000          3,600          -                  7,600               
Each One Reach One Gospel Concerts 12,800        9,500          15,000        37,300             
East Lubbock Art House Voices of East Lubbock 1,308          -                  -                  1,308               
Fiestas del Llano, Inc. Fiestas Patrias 7,800          8,560          12,000        9,000          37,360             
Flatlands Dance Theatre Spring/Fall Performances 6,550          4,300          7,500          10,000        28,350             
Flatlands Prod/Cactus Kids Theatrical Concert Series 11,000        11,990        15,000        14,000        51,990             
Lubbock Arts Alliance Take in the Local Color Studio Tour 7,000          7,000               

Lubbock Arts Festival 41,000        36,167        36,860        54,362        168,389           
Lubbock Cultural District Marketing 11,250        7,700          3,500          4,500          26,950             
Art on the Llano (Public Display of Art) 12,800        8,650          -                  9,100          30,550             

Lubbock Centro Aztlan Viva Aztlan Festival 7,770          9,000          9,100          25,870             
Lubbock Chorale Chorale Concerts 2,925          2,103          2,500          2,500          10,028             
Lubbock Christian University LCU Theatre Season 26,600        26,600             

LCU Theatre Fall Musical Productions 7,700          8,706          11,000        -                  27,406             
Lubbock Community Theatre Season Programming 17,000        19,600        23,000        35,000        94,600             
Lubbock-Con Ventures Lubbock-Con 9,590          9,590               
Lubbock Enter/Performing Arts Assn Buddy Holly Songwriters Retreat and Concert 17,500        17,500             
Lubbock Live Festival Lubbock Live Festival for the Arts 34,703        34,703             
Lubbock Moonlight Musicals Summer Season 35,800        32,860        35,000        103,660           

Moonlight Broadway -                       
Full Season  (Broadway/Summer Combined 52,800        52,800             

Lubbock Symphony Orchestra Masterworks Concert Series 45,000        38,608        45,328        80,000        208,936           
National Cowboy Symposium & Cele National Cowboy Symposium & Celebration 16,750        16,750             
Outside In Festival Outside In Festival 7,850          7,850               
Pride of West Texas Show Chorus Chorus Annual Show 1,708          1,708               
The Robert Burns Society of West TX Annual Robert Burns Supper 3,780          3,537          4,800          7,000          19,117             
TTU College of Architecture A Celebration of Architecture: Buddy Holly Hall -                       
TTU Humanities Animal/Language Interdisciplinary Conf -                       
TTU Office of International Affairs High and Dry Photography Exhibit 1,050          1,000          1,000          1,000          4,050               
TTU Public Media Sound on Tap Live Music Events 8,000          -                  8,000               
TTU School of Art Exhibition and Conference 8,250            5,500          13,750             
TTU University Interscholastic League One-Act Play Competition 8,000          7,402          10,000        6,000          31,402             

One-Act Play Director's workshop 3,550          3,377          5,000          8,400          20,327             
UIL Summer Theatre Camps 10,000        9,154          12,000        9,800          40,954             

City of Lubbock, Texas
Civic Centers

Cultural Arts Grant Funding
2019 through 2023



Organization Project 2019 2020 * 2021 2022 2023 TOTAL

City of Lubbock, Texas
Civic Centers

Cultural Arts Grant Funding
2019 through 2023

Underwood Center for the Arts First Friday Art Trail 14,625        19,417        22,500        30,000        86,542             
Flatland Film Festival 8,160          9,120          9,600          10,000        36,880             
WT Battle of the Bands/Firehouse Presents Series 5,000          2,178          5,000          10,850        23,028             
Hub City Renaissance Faire 3,500          3,500               

West Texas Dancing Raiderettes WTDR Dance Company Season 7,000          7,000               
West Texas Watercolor Society Watercolor Shows (Fall, Winter and/or Spring) 2,200          2,200          3,000          4,000          11,400             

Workshops 3,200          4,400          7,600               
Youth Artist Guild of Lubbock Performing Arts Season 10,850        10,850             

381,930$   299,468$   347,608$   536,873$   1,555,029      
* No grants awarded due to COVID
 
 



Resolution No. 2023- R0366

Item No. 5. 22

July 25, 2023

RESOLUTION

B IT RESOLVED I3Y TII CITY COUNCIL OF "I' IIL CIT' Y OP LUBBOCK: 

fHA"1' the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authoriied and directed to execute
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a License Agreement with Civic Lubbock, Inc., and

all related documents. Said License Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated in this

resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on July 25, 2023

A  ST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTF,NT: 

Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

oster, ssi t City Attorney

cedocslRES. License Agreement Civic Lubbock, Inc. 

6. 1. 23



Resolution No. 2023- R0366

LICENSE AGREEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK

This agreement is entered into on the 25th day of July_ , 2023, 

by and between the City of Lubbock, a home rule municipal corporation ( hereinafter called
City") and Civic Lubbock, Inc., a Texas non- profit corporation ( hereinafter called

Corporation"). 

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the City and the Corporation did heretofore on the 13th day of September, 
2018, enter into an Agreement wherein the City granted to Corporation a license for the use
of the Lubbock Memorial Civic Center, and the Moonlight Musicals Amphitheatre; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City and Corporation to enter into a new
Agreement establishing the relationship between the City and the Corporation; 

NOW THEREFORE: 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY AND THE CORPORATION AS FOLLOWS: 

1. This agreement supersedes and takes the place of the Agreement entered into
by and between the City and Corporation on the 13th day of September, 2018, including all
amendments thereto, and any and all prior agreements between the City and the
Corporation; and upon execution this Agreement shall establish and govern the relationship
between the City and Corporation. 

2. In consideration of the Corporation' s service to the community in the
enhancement of public art and the Corporation' s commitment to its cultural and educational
programs, the City hereby grants to Corporation a license for all food, beverage and other
concession sales in or surrounding the Lubbock Memorial Civic Center, Moonlight
Musicals Amphitheatre, Buddy Holly Center, Buddy & Maria Elena Holly Plaza, Silent
Wings Museum and other designated municipal facilities as mutually determined by the
City and Corporation. The City also grants to Corporation all commissions collected from
catering fees and merchandise fees collected at the Lubbock Memorial Civic Center and
Moonlight Musicals Amphitheatre. 



3. Corporation agrees that for and in consideration of such license, herein granted, 
that Corporation shall pay: 

a) City a commission of five percent ( 5 %) of food and soft drink concession and

in- house catering adjusted gross sales at the Moonlight Musicals Amphitheatre and
Lubbock Memorial Civic Center and other mutually determined municipal facilities for
the term of this agreement. The food and soft drink concession and in- house catering
sales commission shall be paid by Corporation to the City on a quarterly basis with the
first such payment being due on the l Oth day ofJanuary in each fiscal year, and a similar
payment on the lOth day after each succeeding quarter during the term of this
Agreement. 

b) City a commission of five percent ( 5 °/ o) of alcoholic beverages gross sales at
the Lubbock Memorial Civic Center, Moonlight Musicals Amphitheatre, Buddy Holly
Center, Buddy & Maria Elena Holly Plaza, Silent Wings Museum and other mutually
determined municipal facilities for the term of this agreement. This commission shall

be paid by Corporation to the City on a quarterly basis with the first such payment being
due on the l Oth day of January in each fiscal year, and a similar payment on the lOth
day after each succeeding quarter during the term of this Agreement. 

4. Corporation agrees to pay all operational expenses associated with such
concession rights or sales, including, but not limited to, all salaries of full or part- time staff
employees engaged in such sales. Routine maintenance of all concession areas included in

this license shall not be considered an operational expense and shall be borne by the City at
no cost to the Corporation. In addition, the City agrees to employ such full- time staff as
may be necessary and appropriate to assist the Corporation in carrying out the duties and
responsibilities of the concessions and accounting functions of the Corporation. Said
employees will office under the Civic Center Director andlor Assistant Civic Center

Director' s daily supervision. Salaries and benefits of such full- time employees shall be
reimbursed to the City by the Corporation on a quarterly basis. 

a) For the purposes of Section 4 above, the term " salaries" shall include all

applicable categories of pay for eligible City of Lubbock employees as set forth in the
City of Lubbock Policy Manual, including without limitation full-time pay, overtime
pay, stability pay, bilingual pay, and accounting entries to salaries and compensated
absences for accrued vacation, sick leave, and compensatory leave. 

b) For the purposes of Section 4 above, the terms " benefits" shall include those
benefits which the City of Lubbock provides to every eligible City of Lubbock
employee, including required City of Lubbock contributions on behalf of the employee
to the Texas Municipal Retirement System, employer' s share of social security and
Medicare tax, health and dental insurance coverage, workers compensation insurance, 

and basic life insurance coverage. Reimbursement by Corporation to the City shall be
based on actual contributions that the City pays for the benefit, but shall exclude
accounting entries to benefits to record long-term liabilities for pension and other post- 
employment health benefits. 

2



5. In consideration of Corporation's desire to expand its programs and in addition
to the license heretofore granted, the City does hereby further grant to Corporation a license
to operate and manage all box office operations reasonably necessary for ticket sales at the
Lubbock Memorial Civic Center, Moonlight Musicals Amphitheatre and in other mutually
agreed venues. This license authorizes the Corporation to undertake ticket sales for events

scheduled by the City in its facilities; utilize the box office areas within the Lubbock
Memorial Civic Center and the Moonlight Musicals Amphitheatre; and establish charges

for ticketing services in City facilities and other venues in the region which may request
ticketing services for their scheduled events. 

6. Corporation agrees to pay all operational expenses associated with such box
office services, including, but not limited to, all salaries of full or part- time staff employees
engaged in such sales. Routine maintenance of all box office areas included in this license

shall not be considered an operational expense and shall be borne by the City at no cost to
the Corporation. In addition, the City agrees to employ such full- time staff as may be
necessary and appropriate to assist the Corporation in carrying out the duties and
responsibilities of the box office and accounting functions of the Corporation. Said

employees will office under the Civic Center Director andlor Assistant Civic Center

Director' s daily supervision. Salaries and benefits of such full- time employees shall be
reimbursed to the City by the Corporation on a quarterly basis. 

a) For the purposes of Section 6 above, the term " salaries" shall include all

applicable categories of pay for eligible City of Lubbock employees as set forth in the
City of Lubbock Policy Manual, including without limitation full-time pay, overtime
pay, stability pay, bilingual pay, and accounting entries to salaries and compensated
absences for accrued vacation, sick leave, and compensatory leave. 

b) For the purposes of Section 6 above, the terms " benefits" shall include those
benefits which the City of Lubbock provides to every eligible City of Lubbock
employee, including required City of Lubbock contributions on behalf of the employee
to the Texas Municipal Retirement System, employer' s share of social security and
Medicare tax, health and dental insurance coverage, workers compensation insurance, 

and basic life insurance coverage. Reimbursement by Corporation to the City shall be
based on actual contributions that the City pays for the benefit, but shall exclude
accounting entries to benefits to record long- term liabilities for pension and other post- 
employment health benefits. 

7. It is agreed and understood by both Parties that if an employee of the City in a non- 
reimbursed position transfers to a position that has salary and benefits fully reimbursed by the
Corporation, or if an employee in a position that has salary and benefits fully reimbursed by the
Corporation transfers to a non-reimbursed position within the City, the transferring Party shall
reimburse the other Party for the actual amount of the employee' s accrued paid leave as of the
date of the employee' s transfer, or the current liability amount for terminal pay benefits. This
terminal pay benefits payment between the Parties shall have no effect on the transferring
employee' s actual accrued leave balances. Any terminal pay benefits payment payable by the

3



Corporation to the City shall be made at the time of an employee' s transfer. Any terminal pay
benefits payment payable by the City to the Corporation shall also be made at the time of an
employee' s transfer, or as soon as is practicable within scheduled accounting cycles. 

8. The Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board shall have a minimum of two standing sub- 
committees: 1) the Museum and Arts Standing Sub- Committee; and 2) the Cultural Arts
Grant Review Standing Sub- Committee. Each sub- committee shall elect a chairperson and
vice- chairperson, one of whom shall be chosen from the Directors on that committee. Public

representatives for each committee shall be appointed by the City Council. 

The Museum and Arts Standing Sub- Committee shall be composed of four Directors
appointed by the Corporation, up to four representatives of the arts community appointed
by the Corporation and three representatives of the arts community appointed by the City
Council to serve two successive three- year terms or until successors are appointed. 

Responsibilities of the Museum and Arts Standing Sub- Committee include: 

1. Serving as an advisory board for the Silent Wings Museum, the Buddy Holly
Center, and the Garden & Arts Center; 

2. Managing the Preston Smith International Airport Arts Program, which is
funded with a portion of the Corporation' s annual allocation of Hotel

Occupancy Tax; and
3. Developing a public art program, which is funded with a portion of the

Corporation' s annual allocation of Hotel Occupancy Tax, as well as a portion
of the Corporation' s revenue, for the purpose of acquiring and maintaining
public art located on City-owned property, specifically, those properties that
generate tourism. 

The Preston Smith International Airport Arts Program includes both visual and

performing arts and the portion of the Hotel Occupancy Tax utilized for this
program shall not exceed four percent (4°/0) of the Corporation' s annual allocation. 

The portion of the Hotel Occupancy Tax utilized for the public art program shall
not exceed ten percent ( 10%) of the Corporation' s annual allocation. Additionally, 
the Corporation will contribute at least three percent ( 3%) of its bingo income

toward the public art program. 

Recommendations for expenditures to the public art and maintenance program and
the Preston Smith International Airport Arts Program will be made to the

Corporation' s Board of Directors for approval. 

The President of the Corporation or his/ her designee shall serve as an ex- officio

member of the Museum and Arts Standing Sub- Committee. 

C! 



The Cultural Arts Grant Review Standing Sub- Committee shall be composed of three
Directors appointed by the Corporation, plus two members at- large appointed by the City
Council to serve two successive three-year terms or until successors are appointed. 

Responsibilities of the Cultural Arts Grant Review Standing Sub- Committee include: 

1. Developing the guidelines for the Cultural Arts Grant Program, which is funded
by the Hotel Occupancy Tax; 

2. Accepting applications for Cultural Arts Grant Program; and
3. Making grant recipient recommendations to the Corporation' s Board for

presentation to the City Council once each year. 

The President of the Corporation or his/ her designee shall serve as an ex- officio

member of the Cultural Arts Grant Review Standing Sub-Committee. 

The Corporation may, from time to time and at its sole discretion, establish other committees
to assist with projects and purposes associated with the Corporation's mission. Committee
members appointed by the Corporation may consist of Directors of the Corporation and
members of the community whose expertise would enhance the project andlor purpose for
which the committee is intended. 

9. At the Corporation' s expense, Corporation agrees to conduct an annual audit of

its book of accounts by an independent auditor and provide a copy of the final audit to the
City each year during the term of this Agreement. The audit shall be completed no later
than the 30th day of December of each year this Agreement is in force. The copy shall be
provided to the City within 60 days after completion. 

10. If the audit presented by the Corporation to the City identifies a cash fund
balance, after payrnent of the total considerations hereinabove mentioned and excluding all
expenses incurred or encumbered, the Corporation is hereby authorized to retain such fund
balance as follows: 

a) The first one hundred thousand dollars of such cash fund balance shall be

retained by Corporation as a reserve fund for the performance of its obligations and
duties herein set forth; 

b) Any fund balance remaining after the contribution to a reserve account as
mentioned above is satisfied shall be placed in a reserve to fund activities relative to the
purposes of the Corporation as stated in its Charter. 

11. The Corporation hereby agrees to prepare and submit to the City a budget for
the upcoming fiscal year beginning October 1 of each year. The Corporation shall prepare
this budget on forms satisfactory to the City and shall present this budget to the City Council
prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 



12. The Corporation agees to use its best efforts to foster, promote, and present
cultural and educational programs, attractions and entertainment for the general intellectual
and physical improvement and welfare of the people of the City of Lubbock and the
surrounding area which shall add to the quality of life of the citizens of the City of Lubbock
in accordance with the Corporation' s Charter. This will include, but is not limited to, 

sponsoring such programs, attractions, and entertainment and matters incidental hereto, 
including, but not limited to the Walk of Fame projects, development and implementation
of a local grant program for events held in the Civic Center, Amphitheatre, and other local
venues that utilize CLI' s services, sponsorship and co- sponsorship of national touring
productions and events held in the Lubbock Memorial Civic Center and Moonlight
Musicals Amphitheatre and public art programs in or on property owned and operated by
the City. 

13. It is understood by both parties that Corporation receives no direct or indirect
monetary benefit from advertising or sponsorship revenues generated by the operation of
the facilities or events scheduled in the facilities. It is also understood that Corporation has

no right or authority to control, either directly or indirectly, any programming or booking
decision at the Lubbock Memorial Civic Center and the Moonlight Musicals Amphitheatre. 

These functions are handled and controlled by the City. It is also understood that
Corporation is not subject to the direction or control, either directly or indirectly, by the
City as the facility owner and operator, event producer, or any upper tier member of the
alcoholic beverage industry as to the quantities or brands of alcoholic beverage products
purchased andlor sold by Corporation. 

14. In consideration of the Corporation' s services to be rendered pursuant to the
Agreement, the City does hereby grant the Corporation the right to use any and all of the
above mentioned or agreed upon City facilities for its business meetings. The Corporation, 
however, will be required to schedule its meetings at times that are mutually agreeable to
both the City and the Corporation. 

15. The Corporation agrees to secure and maintain during the term of this
Agreement general liability insurance, with the City named as an additional insured on a
primary and non- contributory basis, in the amount of $2, 000, 000. 00 which shall include
products/ completed operations and advertising insurance; liquor liability insurance in the
amount of $1, 000,000. 00; and crime insurance with an employee dishonesty form in the
amount of $1, 000. 00. In addition, Corporation shall elect to obtain workers' compensation

coverage pursuant to Section 406.002 of the Texas Labor Code and shall maintain said
coverage throughout the term of this Agreement. Each policy shall be endorsed to waive
all rights of subrogation against the City by reason of any payment made of claims under
the above coverage. 

16. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by
law, contract, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and
all forms of relief in a court of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject
to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. 

@



The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised
concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, 
or related to, this document, the former shall control. 

17. The term of this Agreement shall be for two years from the date of execution
of this Agreement. After the initial two year term, this Agreement may be extended by
mutual agreement of the parties expressed in writing upon a year- to- year basis for up to
three additional years. Should the City cease to own andlor operate the facilities listed
herein during the term of this agreement the parties may amend or terminate the agreement
as necessary by mutual written agreement. 

18. In the event that this Agreement terminates, the Corporation shall be authorized

to undertake and fulfill all existing obligations and contracts necessary and essential for the
conclusion of the Corporation' s business. The Corporation further agrees to cooperate with

the City to insure an orderly transition of all services and facilities subject to this Agreement
upon its termination. 

EXECUTED this 25th day of

CNI LUBBOCK, C.: 

RESIDENT

ATTEST: 

re

2023. 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

TRAY E, A OR

ATTEST: 

Co ney Paz, City S r tary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

L 7 1 

Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Rachael Foster, s s ant City Attorney



 AI# 12614 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 20. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18160, with Vexus Fiber Internet Services, for upgrades of internet services for various City
departments.

Item Summary
The proposed 3-year agreement is for the Primary Business Internet Services connection, which will
include Fiber Internet upgrades to Citizens Tower and the Civic Center, and installation of Fiber Internet
service at each of the Police Patrol Division Stations and the Garden and Arts Center.

The purchase is made available through The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) Contract 240303 –
Telephone & Communications Data Systems & Solutions Contract. Texas Local Government Code
Chapter 271.083 authorizes local governments to acquire hardware, software, and other Information
Technology products through the TIPS program. Pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 791.025,
purchases from TIPS contracts meet competitive bid requirements.

Fiscal Impact
The one-time installation charge of $860.00, plus the monthly charges of $3,899.70 for the remainder of
FY 2023-24, are funded in the Hardware as a Service Account in the Information Technology Operating
Budget.

The total cost of the 3-Year Internet Services Agreement is $141,249.20. The monthly payments of
$3,899.70 will be paid over the remainder of the contract and will be budgeted in the following Fiscal
Year Budgets, 2024-25, 2025-26, and 2026-27.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Chief Information Officer

Attachments
Vexus Fiber Resolution _Contract 18160 
Vexus Fiber Contract 18160 

















 AI# 12663 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 21. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18193, with Unite Private Networks, to provide Secondary Business Internet Service
connections for Citizens Tower and multiple City locations.

Item Summary
The 3-year agreement is to provide Secondary Business Internet Service connections for Citizens
Tower and multiple City locations with an internet connection of 5 gigabits per second (Gbps) of
bandwidth at a monthly cost of $1,998.  This will replace an existing circuit while increasing our overall
bandwidth without an increase in cost.

The purchase is made available through The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) Contract 220105 -
Technology Solutions, Products and Services Contract. Texas Local Government Code Chapter 271.083
authorizes local governments to acquire hardware, software, and other Information Technology products
through the TIPS program. Pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 791.025, purchases from TIPS
contracts meet competitive bid requirements.

Fiscal Impact
The 3-Year Internet Access Services Agreement is for a monthly cost of $1,998, and an annual cost
of $23,976, which is appropriated in Information Technology's Hardware as a Service Account. The
monthly payments will be paid over the course of the 3 years and will be budgeted in FY 2024-25 and
2025-26 Information Technology Operating Budgets.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Chief Information Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Unite Private Networks LLC-Contract 18193 
Contract 18193 - Unite Private Networks LLC 





















 AI# 12658 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 3): Consider a request for Zone Case 763-D, a request of Woda
Cooper Companies, Inc. for Buslon, Inc., for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District
(SF-2) and Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to Medium Density Residential District (MDR),
at 5311 Bangor Avenue, located north of 54th Street and east of Bangor Avenue, on approximately 5.9
acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 28, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on July 8, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 763-D 
Staff Report 763-D 
Documentation 763-D 









 

 

EXHIBIT "A" 

 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of an approximate 5.9 acre tract of land located in Section 28, Block E-2, 

Lubbock County, Texas, being further described as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a point for the Northeast corner of this tract located in the South line of a 20 foot alley and the West right-

of-way line Albany Avenue which bears N. 89°51’30” W. an approximate distance of 887.6 feet and South an approximate 

distance of 999.1 feet from the Northeast corner of Section 28, Block E-2, Lubbock County, Texas; 

 

THENCE South along the West right-of-way line of said Albany Avenue, an approximate distance of 419.4 feet to a point 

of curvature for the most Easterly Southeast corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE Southwesterly, continuing along the West right-of-way line of said Albany Avenue, along a curve to the right, 

said curve having a radius of 15.0 feet, a central angle of 90°00’00”, a chord distance of 21.2 feet, and a chord bearing of  

S. 45°00’00” W. to a point in the North right-of-way line of 54th Street and a point of tangency for the most Southerly 

Southeast corner of this tract. 

 

THENCE West along the North right-of-way line of said 54th Street, an approximate distance of 561.0 feet to a point in the 

East right-of-way line of Bangor Avenue and a point of curvature for the most Southerly Southwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE Northwesterly, along the East right-of-way line of said Bangor Avenue, along a curve to the right, said curve 

having a radius of 15.0 feet, a central angle of 90°00’00”, a chord distance of 21.2 feet, and a chord bearing of                   

N. 45°00’00” W. to a point of tangency for the most Westerly Southwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE North continuing along the East right-of-way line of said Bangor Avenue, an approximate distance of 420.8 feet 

to a point in the South line of said 20 foot alley for the Northwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE S. 89°51’30” E. along the South line of said 20 foot alley, an approximate distance of 591.0 feet to the Point of 

Beginning. 

 

PREPARED FOR ZONING PURPOSES ONLY. DOES NOT REPRESENT AN ACTUAL SURVEY AND SHALL NOT 

BE RECORDED FOR ANY REAL PROPERTY PURPOSES. 

 

Prepared for Woda Cooper Companies, Inc. 

June 21, 2024 



Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 763-D 
City Council Meeting July 23, 2024 

Applicant Woda Cooper Companies, Inc. 

Property Owner  Buslon, Inc.  

Council District  3 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 11, 1958, Ordinance No. 2535: The subject property was annexed into city limits.
• April 23, 1959, Zone Case 2760, Ordinance No. 2760: The subject property was zoned Single-Family

District (R-1).
• October 14, 1971, Zone Case 1758, Ordinance No. 6177: The eastern portion of the subject property was

zoned Two-Family District (R-2).
• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned

from R-1 and R-2 to Low Density Single Family District (SF-2) and Medium Density Residential District
(MDR), respectively, with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.

• July 8, 2024, Zone Case 763-D: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone
change from SF-2 and MDR to MDR, by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 19
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property consists of 5.90 acres of unplatted land out of Block, E-2, Section 28. The property has 
remained vacant since annexation.  

Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the north and east are zoned MDR and developed with apartments. Property to the west is 
zoned MDR and High Density Residential District (HDR) and also developed with apartments. The property to the 
south is a playa lake and Buster Long Park, zoned SF-2.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is currently addressed as 5311 Bangor Avenue, located north of 54th Street and east of 
Bangor Avenue, on 5.9 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 28. The applicant is requesting a zone 
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and Medium Density Residential (MDR) to MDR. 

Current zoning: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and Medium Density Residential District (MDR)

Requested overlay:  Medium Density Residential District (MDR) 

Intent Statements 
The purpose of the Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) district is “to provide two types of residential subdivisions: 



Page 2 of 2 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space 
is located on private lots. 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with in increased percentage of common 
open space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended 
character of the district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent 
neighborhoods, as well as for recreational amenities and resources protection.” 

The intent of the proposed MDR District is “…to provide for a village neighborhood environment of smaller-
sized lots, to include dwellings such as duplexes, townhouses, and multiplexes.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The location is along 54th Street and Bangor Avenue which are designated as local streets by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local streets typically provide access to smaller, destination oriented areas, such as 
neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts.   

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for High Density Residential land uses. While this request is a minor 
deviation from this designation, it is appropriate in this location, adjacent to other multi-family uses and 
residential zoning districts. This request is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located adjacent to 
other apartment complexes.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the land uses within the MDR district. It may need additional public improvements 
to support the intensity of uses described in this district, as the property is unplatted. 

Attachments 
A. 
B. 
C. 
D. 
E. 
F. 
G. 

Case Information 
Thoroughfare Plan Map  
Aerial Map 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use Map 
Photos 
Application and supporting documentation 

Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea  Victor Escamilla 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2096  806-775-3029 
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=950
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=860
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1114
mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 763-D 

 

Allowable Uses:   Medium Density Residential District (MDR) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 54th Street and Bangor 

Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

54th Street, 

Local Street 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-

lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 70 feet, two-

lane, undivided, paved 

Bangor Avenue 

Local Street 

R.O.W. 66 feet, two-

lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 70 feet, two-

lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 3 

3.1   Zone Case 763-D: Woda Cooper Companies, Inc., for Buslon, Inc., request for a zone change from 

Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to 

Medium Density Residential District (MDR), at: 

• 5311 Bangor Avenue, located north of 54th Street and east of Bangor Avenue, on 

approximately 5.9 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 28.   

 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. Staff recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT PARKER ZEE, with Woda Cooper Companies, 500 South French Street, Columbus, Ohio, gave 

comments on the 120 unit apartment complex planned for the property and answered questions from the 

Planning and Zoning Commission 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 763-D , a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by SUSAN TOMLINSON to 

approve the zone case as presented. The commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 











763-D

South View.

East View. —Subject PropertyWest View.

North View.



May 29, 2024



 

 
OFFICES LOCATED IN GEORGIA, INDIANA, KENTUCKY, MARYLAND, MICHIGAN, NORTH CAROLINA, OHIO, AND VIRGINIA. 

WODA COOPER COMPANIES, INC. IS AN ESOP OWNED COMPANY AND PARENT COMPANY OF WODA COOPER DEVELOPMENT, INC., WODA CONSTRUCTION, INC., AND 
WODA MANAGEMENT & REAL ESTATE, LLC.  

614.396.3200 
www.wodagroup.com 

500 South Front St  
10th Floor 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
5311 Bangor Ave Rezoning Explanation 

 
 
Woda Cooper Companies, Inc. develops, designs, constructs, and manages affordable housing 
communities. We are seeking to rezone 5311 Bangor Ave to develop approximately 120 units of 
affordable housing. The location is ideal for multifamily as the surrounding uses are mostly 
multifamily, it is located across the street from Buster Long park, and is located near many amenities 
including the Soutbh Plains Mall. A portion of the property is already zoned MDR and we seek to 
have the entire parcel zoned MDR.  
 
The future land use designation is “high density residential.” The high density residential land use is 
characterized by multi-story, multifamily apartment and condominium style units. According to the 
comprehensive plan, density for this land use is between 12-25 units with newer construction having 
densities between 20 to 30 dwelling units an acre. 



 AI# 12661 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Consider a request for Zone Case 2538-MM, a request of K-9
Kennels, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial
District (HC), at 1607 and 1715 Alcove Avenue, located north of 19th Street and east of Alcove Avenue,
on approximately 6.1 acres of unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 1, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on July 8, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 2538-MM 
Staff Report 2538-MM 
Documentation 2538-MM 









AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONE CHANGE REQUEST IN
SECTION 1, BLOCK D6,

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS

(Sheet 1 of 2, Sketch of tract attached as Sheet 2)

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 6.05-acre tract of land located in Section 5, Block 
AK, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for Zone Change Purposes only and being further 
described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point that bears S 05° 00’ 37” W an approximate distance of 779.51 feet to the 
southeast corner of Section 1, Block D6;

THENCE N 01° 51’ 55” W an approximate distance of 553.16 feet;

THENCE S 87° 20’ 53” E an approximate distance of 477.19 feet;

THENCE S 01° 24’ 51” E an approximate distance of 545.94 feet;

THENCE S 88° 12’ 51” W an approximate distance of 481.44 feet to the Point of Beginning and 
containing approximately 6.05-acres.

This description was prepared for the purposes of a zoning request and does not represent 
a survey made upon the ground.

Prepared for: Sheri Gray
June 24, 2024

Exhibit "A"



250'0 125' 500'NOT TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP

SITE
LOCATION



•

•

•

•

•

•
•
•





Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2538-MM 

 

Allowable Uses: Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Alcove Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Alcove Avenue, 
Principal Arterial, 

Partial 

R.O.W. 40 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 5 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 6 
 

3.4        Zone Case 2538-MM: K-9 Kennels, request for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family 
District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at: 

 
• 1607 and 1715 Alcove Avenue, located north of 19th Street and east of Alcove Avenue, 

on approximately 6.1 acres of unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 1. 
 
PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER gave a presentation and answered questions from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission. Staff recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT SHERI GRAY, 2503 Alcove Avenue, gave comments and answered questions from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2538-MM, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by TERRI MORRIS 
to approve the zone case as presented. The commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the 
motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1620












2538-MM

View east. Subject property. View north.

View south. View west.



2538-MM

 

1607 Alcove Avenue 

 

1715 Alcove Avenue









 AI# 12642 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Hold a public hearing in accordance with Section 43.0694(a) of the Texas
Local Government Code, regarding the City of Lubbock's intent to annex an area of land consisting of
approximately 374.74 acres of real property commonly known as the Highland Oaks Subdivision,
located within an area located south of 146th Street (F.M. 7500), east of Frankford Avenue, north of
Woodrow Road (F.M. 7600), and west of Slide Road (F.M. Road 1730) into Lubbock's corporate limits.

Item Summary
On July 9, 2024, City Council held the first required public hearing.

On June 11, 2024, City Council adopted Resolution No. 2024-R0291, indicating their intent to annex an
area of land generally described as 374.74 acres south of 146th Street and east of Frankford Avenue, into
Lubbock's corporate limits, and execute a Municipal Services Agreement with the Highland Oaks
Homeowner's Association, for the requested annexation.

In accordance with Section 43.0693 of the Texas Local Government Code, a notice was sent to all
property owners within the proposed annexation area on June 17, 2024. The notice contained
information regarding two public hearings on July 9, 2024 and July 23, 2024, an election on the question
of annexing the area on November 5, 2024, and a copy of the Municipal Services Agreement. A metes
and bounds description of the area and a map were included with the notice.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
Highland Oaks - Resolution of Intent to Annex 
Highland Oaks - Municipal Services Agreement 
Highland Oaks - Annexation Map 
Highland Oaks - Metes and Bounds Description 



Resolution No. 2024- R0291

Item No. 6. 2

June 11, 2024

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock, Texas ( the " City") is a home- rule municipality with
authority under state law and its charter to annex real property into its corporate limits; and

WHER AS, representatives of the owners ofcertain developed real property (hereinafter
defined and referenced as the " Subject Area") outside the corporate limits of the City ( the
Highland Oaks Homeowner' s Association" or " Highland Oaks HOA"), with widespread and

persistent water shortages, have expressed a desire to have the Subject Area annexed by the City; 
and

WI IEItEAS, pursuant to Chapter 43 of Texas Local Government Code, Subchapter C- 5, 
the Highland Oaks IIOA has further petitioned the City to hold an election on the question of
annexation of the Subject Area; and

WHCREAS, pursuant to Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City is
required to establish a municipal services plan outlining the municipal services to be provided to
the Subject Area in the event the question of annexation of the Subject Area is answered in the
affirmative; and

WHEREAS, one critical component relating the provision of municipal services to be
provided to the Subject Area would be the provision of water utility services and the party
responsible for providing the necessary financial support for the water utility services; and

WHEREAS, in anticipation of a finally approved annexation of the Subject nrea, but as
a precondition thereto, the Highland Oaks HOA has proposed that the City of Lubbock create a
Public Improvement District (" PID"), with identical boundaries as the Subject Area, for thc

purposes of levying an assessment on all the properiies located therein, in amounts suffcient to
scrvice and retire all bonded indebtedness incurred by the PID to finance the construction of
infrastructure necessary to provide water service tu any property annexed; and

WH IZEAS, the City Council finds that the City presently has no existing legal obligation
to providc water or other governmental services to the Subject Area, nor would any of the
activitics undertaken by thc City in anticipation of the rcqucstcd annexation create such legal
obligation for thc purposcs of Tcxas Local Govcrnmcnt Codc, Section 43. 0699; 

WI IEIZI; AS, the City Council believes it to be in the best interest of the City of Lubbock
to approve the municipal services plan attached hereto including the preconditions relating to the
tinancing of the construction and development of the water utility system to the Subject Area. 

NOW TIILIZ FORL BE IT RESOLVED BY TIIE CITY COUNCIL Ol THC CITY OP

LUBBOCK: 

THAT the City Council of the City of Lubbock, pursuant to Texas Local Government
Code, Section 43. 0692, hereby expresses an intent to annex into Lubbock' s corporate limits





















As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Annexation of Highland Oaks Subdivision
and a Portion of Frankford Ave

Located within Section 7, Block AK

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

Proposed Annexation
374.74 Acres

KELSEY

PARK

INSIDE CITY LIMITS

146TH ST  CR 7500

WOODROW RD

VIN
TAGE

TOWNSHIP

FRANKFORD

FARMS

130TH ST  FM 1585

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000500
Feet

CR 7570

WIN
DSOR

PARK

Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

A
V

E 
P

FM
 1

73
0

TUMBLEWEED

PASS ESTATES
FR

A
N

K
FO

RD
 A

V
E

WOODROW RD

HIG
HLAND OAKS

FM
 1

73
0

FR
A

N
K

FO
RD

 A
V

E

146TH ST

SOUTHWEST

GARDENS

CR 7540

C
R 

18
40

C
R 

18
70

C
R 

18
30

BELLA

MIA ESTATES

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

IN
SID

E C
ITY

 LIM
ITS

O
U

TSID
E C

ITY
 LIM

ITS



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

EXHIBIT "A" 

 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 374.74-acre tract located in Sections 7 and 10, Block AK, Lubbock County, 
Texas, being further described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point for the most Easterly Southeast corner of Lot 7, Highland Oaks, a subdivision located in Section 
7, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, according to the instrument recorded in Volume 6743, Page 85, Official Real 
Property Records of Lubbock County, Texas, and the most Easterly Southeast corner of this tract, said point also being 
in the West right-of-way line of Slide Road (F.M. Road 1730), as dedicated by said Highland Oaks, which bears  
N. 01°43'10" E. a distance of 922.63 feet and N. 88°16'50" W. a distance of 55.00 feet from the Southeast corner of said 
Section 7, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas; 
 
THENCE N. 88°16'50" W., along the West right-of-way line of said Slide Road (F.M. Road 1730) and the Eastern boundary 
of said Lot 7, a distance of 5.00 feet to a point of intersection; 
 
THENCE Southwesterly, along said West right-of-way line and the Eastern boundary of said Lot 7, along a curve to the 
right, said curve having a radius of 2231.83 feet, a central angle of 00°28'41", a chord bearing of S. 01°57'31" W., a chord 
distance of 18.62 feet to a point for the most Southerly Southeast corner of said Lot 7, said point also being in the Southern 
boundary of the plat limits of said Highland Oaks; 
 
THENCE N. 86°15'43" W., continuing along the Southern boundary of said Lot 7 and along a Southern boundary of said 
plat limits, a distance of 498.91 feet to a point for the Southwest corner of said Lot 7; 
 
THENCE S. 16°53'17" W., along an Eastern boundary of said plat limits, at 51.35 feet pass the Northeast corner of the 
plat limits of Lots 193-255, Highland Oaks, a subdivision located in Section 7, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, 
continuing along the Eastern boundary of said plat limits a total distance of 355.37 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE S. 01°53'17" W., continuing along the Eastern boundary of said plat limits, a distance of 508.26 feet to a point 
70 feet North of the South line of said Section 7 for the most Southerly Southeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 88°15'04" W., along a line 70 feet North of and parallel to the South line of said Section 7, crossing various 
lots and street and alley rights-of-way dedicated by said Highland Oaks, a distance of 4086.01 feet to a point in the 
Western boundary of said plat limits, for the most Southerly Southwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 01°53'17" E. a distance of 879.99 feet to a point for the Northwest corner of said plat limits, said point also 
being in the Southern boundary of the plat limits of Lots 81-138, Highland Oaks, a subdivision in Section 7, Block AK, 
Lubbock County, Texas, according to the instrument recorded in Volume 7699, Page 311, Official Public Records of 
Lubbock County, Texas (OPRLCT); 
 
THENCE N. 88°00'43" W., along the Southern boundary of said plat limits, at 564.12 feet pass the West line of said 
Section 7, the East line of said Section 10 and the Southwest corner of said plat limits, continuing for a total distance of 
614.12 feet to a point in the West right-of-way line of County Road 1800, as granted by easement recorded in Volume 
1277, Page 683, Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas, for the most Westerly Southwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE. N. 01°52'42" E., along a line 50 feet West of and parallel to the West line of said Section 7 and the East line of 
said Section 10, and along the West right-of-way line of said County Road 1800, a distance of 1372.57 feet to a point for 
the most Westerly Northwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 88°20'51" E., at 50.00 feet pass the West line of said Section 7, the East line of said Section 10, and the 
Northwest corner of the plat limits of said Lots 81-138, Highland Oaks, continuing along the Northern boundary of said 
plat limits for a total distance of 1338.39 feet to a point; 
 



This document was prepared under 22 TAC §138.95, does not reflect the results of an on the ground survey, and is not to 
be used to convey or establish interests in real property except those rights and interests implied or established by the 
creation or reconfiguration of the boundary of the political subdivision for which it was prepared. 

 
Page 2 of 2  

THENCE N. 01°52'42" E., at 135.94 feet pass an "ell" corner of said plat limits of Lots 81-138, Highland Oaks, and the 
Southwest corner of Lots 139-192, Highland Oaks, an addition located in Section 7, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, 
according to the instrument recorded in Volume 10199, Page 204, OPRLCT, continuing along the Western boundary of 
said plat limits, for a total distance of 1641.93 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE S. 88°07'18" E. a distance of 10.00 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE N. 01°52'42" E., along a line 10 feet East of and parallel to the Western boundary of the plat limits of said Lots 
139-192, Highland Oaks, crossing various lots and alley rights-of-way dedicated by said Highland Oaks, a distance of 
1222.68 feet to a point in the present city limits as established by City of Lubbock Ordinance Number 2016-O0054 and 
the South right-of-way line of 146th Street, dedicated by said Highland Oaks, for the most Northerly Northwest corner of 
Lot 168, said Highland Oaks, and the most Northerly Northwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 88°46'30" E., along said present city limits and the South right-of-way line of said 146th Street, a distance of 
1346.16 feet to a point in the Eastern boundary of the plat limits of said Lots 139-192, Highland Oaks, for the most 
Northerly Northeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 01°47'37" W., along the Eastern boundary of said plat limits, a distance of 2300.78 feet to a point for the 
Southeast corner of said plat limits, said point also being in the Northern boundary of the plat limits of Lots 1-80 and Tracts 
A & B, said Highland Oaks, for an "ell" corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 88°36'30" E., along the Northern boundary of said plat limits, a distance of 2592.46 feet to a point in the West 
right-of-way line of said Slide Road (F.M. Road 1730), for the most Easterly Northeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 01°43'10" W., along the West right-of-way line of said Slide Road (F.M. Road 1730), a distance of 1997.04 
feet to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Contains: 374.74 acres 
 
Bearings relative to Grid North, Texas Coordinate System of 1983, North-Central Zone, 2011 (epoch 2010.0). 
 
Prepared: June 4, 2024 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Robert A. Christopher 

Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5167 
Licensed State Land Surveyor 

State of Texas  



 AI# 12644 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 4. 
07/23/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution and Order - City Secretary: Consider a resolution and order for a special city election to be
held on November 5, 2024, in accordance with Texas Local Government Code Section 43.0696,
regarding the annexation of approximately 374.74 acres of real property commonly known as the
Highland Oaks Subdivision, located within an area located south of 146th Street (F.M. 7500), east of
Frankford Avenue, north of Woodrow Road (F.M. 7600), and west of Slide Road (F.M. Road 1730).

Item Summary
Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 43, subchapter C-5, the Highland Oaks
Homeowner’s Association has requested annexation into the City of Lubbock.

City Council adopted Resolution No. 2024-R0291, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section
43.0692, on June 11, 2024, expressing the City of Lubbock’s intent to annex real property generally
described as 374.74 acres located south of 146th Street and east of Frankford Avenue. This area is more
commonly known as the Highland Oaks Subdivision.

On June 17, 2024, pursuant to Section 43.0693 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City of
Lubbock mailed each property owner within the area proposed to be annexed a notification that included
the following: a notice of public hearings, notice that an election would be held, and a description, list,
and schedule of services to be provided by the City of Lubbock in the area after annexation.

Public hearings were held pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 43.0694 (a) on July 9,
2024, and July 23, 2024, regarding the City of Lubbock’s intent to annex the real property previously
described.

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 43.0696, the City of Lubbock shall order an election
on the question of annexing the area to be held on the first uniform election date, which is November 5,
2024.
 

Fiscal Impact
Texas Local Government Code Section 43.0696(b) states that the municipality shall pay for the costs of
holding the election.

Election Related Fiscal Impact: $160,000 - $200,000 (This is a range estimate. The cost will depend on
how many government entities, and the size of other local governments who will participate in a joint
election with us.) 

$350,000 has been requested to be appropriated in the FY 2024-25 Operating Budget (pending approval
by the City Council) for any special elections during the upcoming fiscal year.



Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
Resolution - Highland Oaks Annexation Election Order 
Exhibit A - Map 
Ex. B - Election Day Voting Location 
Ex. C - Early Voting Locations 
Ex. D - Election Order and Notice 











As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Annexation of Highland Oaks Subdivision
and a Portion of Frankford Ave

Located within Section 7, Block AK

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

Proposed Annexation
374.74 Acres

KELSEY

PARK

INSIDE CITY LIMITS

146TH ST  CR 7500

WOODROW RD

VIN
TAGE

TOWNSHIP

FRANKFORD

FARMS

130TH ST  FM 1585

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000500
Feet

CR 7570

WIN
DSOR

PARK

Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

A
V

E 
P

FM
 1

73
0

TUMBLEWEED

PASS ESTATES
FR

A
N

K
FO

RD
 A

V
E

WOODROW RD

HIG
HLAND OAKS

FM
 1

73
0

FR
A

N
K

FO
RD

 A
V

E

146TH ST

SOUTHWEST

GARDENS

CR 7540

C
R 

18
40

C
R 

18
70

C
R 

18
30

BELLA

MIA ESTATES

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

IN
SID

E C
ITY

 LIM
ITS

O
U

TSID
E C

ITY
 LIM

ITS

173460
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A (Anexo A)



Exhibit B (Anexo B) 

 

November 5, 2024 Lubbock County General and Special Elections 
(Elecciones generales y especiales del condado de Lubbock 5 de noviembre de 2024) 

 
Vote Center Locations 

(Lugares de Centros de Votación) 
 

Tuesday, November 5, 2024 
(martes, 5 de noviembre de 2024) 

7:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. 
 

***American Sign Language Interpreters available         ***Intérpretes de Lenguaje de Señas disponibles 

 

*The list of Election Day voting locations is still being finalized. 
 



Exhibit B (Anexo B)

Election Day 

        Judges & Alternate Judges 

November 5, 2024 Lubbock County General and Special Elections 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.

This list is To Be Determined. 



Sections 85.067 and 85.068

V.T.C.A., Election Code
Exhibit C Anexo C

Main Early Voting Polling Place
Lugar principal de la votación anticipada

Dates:

Fechas:

Mon, October 21 – Fri, November 1

lunes, 21 de octubre ‐ viernes, 1 de noviembre

Lubbock County Elections Office
Oficina de Elecciones del Condado de Lubbock

Times:

horas:
8:00 AM ‐ 8:00 PM

1308 Crickets Ave, Lubbock, TX 79401

1308 avenida Crickets
Room:  Public Room

Sala: salón público 

*The list of branch early voting polling places is still being finalized.

Early Voting Branch Polling Places
Votacion Anticipada en los Sitios de Votacion Auxiliares

******************************************************************************************************

 November 5, 2024 Lubbock County General and Special Elections

(Elecciones generales y especiales del condado de Lubbock 5 de noviembre de 2024 )

EARLY VOTING DATES:  Monday, October 21 – Friday, Novmber 1, 2024

(Fechas de Votación Adelantada:  Lunes, 21 de octubre– viernes, 1 de noviembre del 2024)

Early Voting by personal appearance for the November 5, 2024

Lubbock County General and Special Elections

ALL EARLY POLLING LOCATIONS ON THE DATES, TIMES, AND LOCATIONS LISTED BELOW:

Votación Adelantada para las Elecciones generales y especiales del condado de Lubbock 5 de noviembre de 2024, 

2024 serán conducidas en LAS FECHAS, HORARIOS Y SITIOS LISTADOS ABAJO:

NOTICE OF EARLY VOTING
AVISO DE VOTACIÓN ANTICIPADA

******************************************************************************************************




	Agenda
	5.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_6.25.2024
	       ATT_6.25.2024 S Swearing-In Ceremony
	6.01.__Budget Amendment 40
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 40
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	6.02.__Budget Amendment 41
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 41
	6.03.__Budget Amendment 42
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 42
	       ATT_BA 42 - Exhibit A
	6.04.__Budget Amendment 43
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 43
	6.05.__ROW and Drainage Deeds - Erskine St. Parcel 4
	       ATT_Parcel 4 Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 4 ROW Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 4 Drainage Easement
	       ATT_GIS Map Erskine St. - Parcel 4
	       ATT_Parcel 4 MOA
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet - 92819 - 07-02-2024
	       ATT_CIP 92713 Budget Sheet
	6.06.__Right of Way Deed 34th: Upland to Milwaukee Parcel 31
	       ATT_Parcel 31 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 31 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 31 - GIS Map
	       ATT_34th Upland to Milwaukee - CIP 92813 Detail -7.23.2024
	       ATT_CIP 92813 DETAIL
	6.07.__Right of Way Deed 34th: Upland to Milwaukee Parcel 2
	       ATT_Parcel 2 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 2 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 2 - GIS Map
	       ATT_ CIP 92813 Budget Detail -7.23.2024
	       ATT_CIP 92813 DETAIL
	6.08.__Right of Way Deed Upland: 4th to 19th Parcel 6
	       ATT_Parcel 6 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 6 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 6 - GIS Map
	       ATT_Upland 4th to 19th - Budget Detail
	       ATT_Upland 4th to 19th - CIP Detail - 7.3.2024
	6.09.__Right of Way Deed Upland: 4th to 19th Parcel 7
	       ATT_Parcel 7 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 7 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 7 - GIS Map
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail - 7.3.2024
	       ATT_Upland 4th to 19th - CIP Detail
	6.10.__Right of Way Deed Upland: 4th to 19th Parcel 8
	       ATT_Parcel 8 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 8 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 8 - GIS Map
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail - 7.3.2024
	       ATT_CIP 92812 Detail
	6.11.__Right of Way Deed Upland: 4th to 19th Parcel 13
	       ATT_Parcel 13 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 13 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 13 - GIS Map
	       ATT_Upland 4th to 19th - Budget Detail
	       ATT_Upland 4th to 19th - CIP Detail - 7.23.2024
	6.12.__Right of Way Deed Upland: 4th to 19th Parcel 16
	       ATT_Parcel 16 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 16 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 16 - GIS Map
	       ATT_Upland 4th to 19th - Budget Detail
	       ATT_Upland 4th to 19th - CIP Detail - 7.23.2024
	6.13.__Right of Way Deed Upland: 4th to 19th Parcel 21
	       ATT_Parcel 21 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 21 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 21 - GIS Map
	       ATT_Upland 4th to 19th - Budget Detail
	       ATT_Upland 4th to 19th - CIP Detail - 7.23.2024
	6.14.__Right of Way Deed Upland: 34th to 50th Parcel 12
	       ATT_Parcel 12 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 12 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 12 - Signed Waterline Easement
	       ATT_Parcel 12 - GIS Map
	       ATT_92815 - Upland Ave from 34th St to 50th St - 22B
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet 92815 7-23-2024
	6.15.__Right of Way Deed I-27 and 82nd Drainage
	       ATT_8901 HWY 87 - Resolution
	       ATT_8901 HWY 87 - Contract
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet - (92825) - 7-23-2024
	6.16.__Change Order 02 - Contract 16162-Landmark Structures, LP 
	       ATT_Resolution - Lubbock Landmark Structures
	       ATT_Change Order No. 2
	       ATT_Executed Change Order No. 1
	       ATT_Executed Contract 16162
	       ATT_Map - Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP 92753-Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92753-Cost Detail
	6.17.__Resolution - Engineering: Contract No. 18144 for Unpaved Roads Improvements C.O. Phase 4 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 18144 - West Texas Paving, Inc
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_18144 - Project Summary
	       ATT_92712 Budget Detail 
	       ATT_CIP Detail 
	6.18.__Termination of Lease Agreement  - Dollar General
	       ATT_Resolution of Mutual Lease Termination
	       ATT_Agreement - Dollar General (s)
	       ATT_Dollar General Lease Agreement
	6.19.__Cultural Arts Grants
	       ATT_Resolution CAG
	       ATT_CLI Board Letter
	       ATT_CAG Recommendations
	       ATT_CAG Detail Support
	       ATT_Funding History
	       ATT_CLI License Agreement
	6.20.__ Contract 18160 - Vexus Fiber for Internet Services
	       ATT_Vexus Fiber Resolution _Contract 18160
	       ATT_Vexus Fiber Contract 18160
	6.21.__Unite Private Networks, LLC - Ethernet Internet Access
	       ATT_Resolution - Unite Private Networks LLC-Contract 18193
	       ATT_Contract 18193 - Unite Private Networks LLC
	7.01.__ZC 763-D
	       ATT_Ordinance 763-D
	       ATT_Staff Report 763-D
	       ATT_Documentation 763-D
	Slide Pics 763-D.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	7.02.__ZC 2538-MM
	       ATT_Ordinance 2538-MM
	       ATT_Staff Report 2538-MM
	       ATT_Documentation 2538-MM
	7.03.__HOA - 2nd PH
	       ATT_Highland Oaks - Resolution of Intent to Annex
	       ATT_Highland Oaks - Municipal Services Agreement
	       ATT_Highland Oaks - Annexation Map
	       ATT_Highland Oaks - Metes and Bounds Description
	7.04.__Election Order - Highland Oaks
	       ATT_Resolution - Highland Oaks Annexation Election Order
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Map
	       ATT_Ex. B - Election Day Voting Location
	       ATT_Ex. C - Early Voting Locations
	       ATT_Ex. D - Election Order and Notice

